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Key figures

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Operating income

(ISK billion) (ISK billion)
53.4 54.5
14.4
2017 2016 2017

B Other operating income
B Net fee and commission income

W Net interest income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Total assets

(ISK billion) (ISK billion)
1,148
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M Other assets M Individuals

M Loans to credit institutions M Corporates
M Cash and bal. with Central Bank
¥ Financial instruments

M Loans to customers
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Net earnings

Loans to customers

Cost to income Return on equity

(%) (%)
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2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Equity CET1
(ISK billion) (%)
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Endorsement and statement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2017 include the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Arion Bank ("the Bank") and its subsidiaries, together referred to as "the Group".

Outlook

Icelandic economy is doing well and GDP grew by 4.3% in the first nine months of 2017, fueled by soaring private consumption, and to a
lesser extent, continued investment growth. In recent months signs have been emerging suggesting that the economy is reaching an
equilibrium following a period of exceptional growth. A turning point was reached last year as housing investment took up the baton from
business investment as the main driving force behind investment growth, while public investment also picked up steam. However, there was
a substantial slow-down in both investment and export growth. It appears that tourism has passed its peak growth, at least for the time
being, with more moderate growth on the horizon. Inflation remains below the Central Bank's inflation target, although inflationary pressure
is picking up. Despite a slight depreciation last summer following the removal of nearly all capital controls, the kréna has remained strong
and fluctuations have somewhat decreased. The economic outlook is favorable and Arion Research predicts continued GDP growth, low
unemployment but rising inflation as the year goes by, albeit still remaining within the Central Bank’s tolerance level.

About Arion Bank

Arion Bank is a leading, well balanced universal relationship bank operating on the Icelandic financial market. The Bank has a moderate risk
profile and enjoys a strong position in all its business segments: Retail Banking, Corporate Banking, Asset Management and Investment
Banking. The Bank's subsidiaries further supplement its service offering. The largest subsidiaries are Valitor, Stefnir and Vérdur tryggingar.
Valitor is a market leader in Iceland in acquiring services and payment solutions and also has operations in Scandinavia and the United
Kingdom. Stefnir is Iceland's largest fund management company and Vordur tryggingar is the fourth largest insurance company in Iceland
and provides both non-life and life insurance services.

Arion Bank places great importance on innovation and efficiency in its operations. A key area of focus for many years has been developing
online banking, and in recent years mobile banking has been a priority. The Bank has also set itself the goal of being the leading digital bank
in Iceland and has become a market leader in digital solutions. Over the last two years the Bank has launched 15 digital solutions,
particularly targeted at retail customers. These solutions have had a profound impact on the Bank's market position, for example in the
mortgage market, where the Bank is in fierce competition with the pension funds which enjoy a far more beneficial regulatory and taxation
environment. Arion Bank has been able to maintain and even increase its market share by competing on services and dealing swiftly with
customer requests. New digital solutions have therefore already had, and will continue to have, a lasting impact on how the Bank meets the
needs of its customers. The new solutions will furthermore reduce operating expenses across the Bank in the long term. The number of
branches has been substantially reduced in recent years and the Bank will continue to seek ways to bring greater efficiency to the branch
network.

Arion Bank will keep on offering its customers quality services in the areas which are important to them, whether in Retail Banking,
Corporate Banking, Asset Management or Investment Banking. The Bank is financially robust which enables it to grow alongside its
customers and to pay competitive dividends to its owners.

Operations during the year

Net earnings amounted to ISK 14,419 million for 2017, and the total equity amounted to ISK 225,734 million at the end of the year. Return
on equity was 6.6% for the year. The capital ratio of the Bank, according to the Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002, was 24.0% and the
corresponding CET 1 ratio was 23.6%, when taking into account the foreseeable dividend payment and purchase of own shares in the
coming weeks. This comfortably meets the requirements set by law and the Financial Supervisory Authority (FME). The liquidity position was
also strong at year-end and well above the regulatory minimum.

The main changes on the Balance Sheet from year-end 2016 relate to Cash and balance with the Central Bank, which have increased by ISK
52,185 million, or 59.5%, during the year. Loans to customers increased by ISK 52,679 million or 7.4%, deposits increased by ISK 50,097
million or 12.2% and borrowings grew by ISK 45,522 million or 13.4% during the year. The main reasons for the increase in cash are higher
deposits in Retail Banking in 2017 and new borrowings, as well as the fact that no dividend has been paid for two years. New lending is
mainly in the form of mortgages to retail customers and loans to corporates in the real estate and transportation sectors.

In 2017 the Bank's subsidiary Valitor Holding hf. acquired two companies: IPS - International Payment Services Ltd. and Chip and Pin
Solutions Ltd. The purpose of the acquisition is to strengthen Valitor's direct channel market position in United Kingdom.

The Group had 1,284 full-time equivalent positions at the end of the year, compared with 1,239 at the end of 2016; 844 of these positions
were at Arion Bank, compared with 869 at the end of 2016. The increase between years is mainly due to the acquisition of active companies
within the Valitor group and the company's increased activities internationally. The decrease at the parent company can be attributed to the
outsourcing of IT systems and streamlining measures taken in implementing the Bank's digital strategy.
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Endorsement and statement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

The tax environment did not change for Arion Bank during the year even though taxes paid by the main Icelandic banks are much higher
than those paid by other companies. Most significant in this respect are the special 6% tax on earnings exceeding ISK 1 billion and the bank
levy of 0.376% on liabilities exceeding ISK 50 billion.

In October Standard & Poor's upgraded Arion Bank's credit rating from BBB with a positive outlook to BBB+ with a stable outlook. The
upgrade reflects Arion Bank's improved capital position, and the expectation that the Bank will maintain a very strong risk-adjusted capital
ratio. It also reflects an improved view of the economic risks in the Icelandic banking sector, as the economic environment remains
supportive following the release of capital controls earlier this year.

United Silicon

Sameinad silikon hf. (United Silicon), a borrower of the Bank, was granted a moratorium on payments on 14 August 2017, the aim of which
was enable an agreement to be reached with creditors over outstanding debts. The moratorium was granted owing to the operating
difficulties experienced by the company following repeated shutdowns of production at the company's plant, which commenced operations
in November 2016. A recent judgement on compensation from the company relating to a dispute over payments during the construction
period to one of Iceland's largest contractors, [AV hf., exacerbated the problem.

United Silicon used the moratorium period to analyze the reasons for the operating difficulties at its plant and to negotiate deals with its
creditors to defer payment or to convert debt. To analyze the operating difficulties at the plant, Icelandic and international specialists were
hired to evaluate, as far as possible, whether and how much additional investment is needed to bring the plant up to full production
capacity, both in terms of the quantity and quality of the products. Arion Bank monitored this analysis and in its assessment assumed that
the plant would continue to operate, following additional investment. In light of this information, the Bank believed that the basis for
running the plants operation was viable. However, in January 2018 it became clear that the Icelandic Environmental Agency did not agree
with the remedial action proposed by the company following the aforesaid evaluation. The Agency found that further remedial action would
need to be undertaken, some of which was likely to require an additional environmental impact study which, in turn, was likely to postpone
the recommissioning of the plant by 18-20 months. Against this backdrop and without funds to sustain operations for this period, the board
of directors of United Silicon declared the company bankrupt on 22 January 2018.

Arion Bank is United Silicon's primary lender and expects to enjoy a first lien position against all the operational assets of the company. As
such the Bank will demand the transfer of these assets and accompanying rights to a newly established subsidiary of the Bank, Eignabjarg,
established for this purpose. This transfer is expected to be effected in the first quarter of 2018. The Bank intends to either find buyers for
this new subsidiary in its current form or proceed with the necessary remedial action and divest the plant thereafter. At year-end 2017, the
Bank's holding in United Silicon was classified as a disposal group held for sale in accordance with IFRS, as reflected in Note 28.

In the Bank's view the work undertaken during United Silicon's moratorium dispelled some of the uncertainty regarding the operational
status of its business and considerably simplified the recovery and divestment process ahead. On that basis, no further impairments against
United Silicon's assets were made at the end of 2017. The book value of United Silicon's assets at year-end was ISK 5.4 billion and loan
commitment and guarantees are an additional ISK 0.9 million.

Funding and liquidity

The Bank's liquidity position is strong, with a liquidity coverage ratio of 221%, see Note 42, well above the regulatory minimum of 100%. The
strong liquidity position is partly due to pre-financing of upcoming maturities of bonds and planned dividend payments.

Deposits, which are the core of the Bank's funding, increased by ISK 50 billion or 12.2% during the year, mainly due to an increase in retail
deposits. Long-standing economic growth and the increase in purchasing power of our customers is having a positive effect on deposit
development.

At the beginning of 2017 Arion Bank tapped its outstanding five-year senior unsecured EUR 300 million (ISK 36 billion) bond originally issued
in late 2016 for a further EUR 200 million (ISK 24 billion). The bonds were sold at rates corresponding to a 1.55% margin over interbank
rates. In June 2017, Arion Bank issued new three-year senior unsecured bonds for a total of EUR 300 million (ISK 35 billion) in a transaction
which was oversubscribed twofold. The bonds were sold at rates corresponding to a 0.88% margin over interbank rates.

The proceeds of these issues were partly used to repay the resettable EMTN held by Kaupthing and to tender outstanding notes due in
March 2018 for EUR 100 million from EUR 300 million to EUR 200 million, thereby reducing refinancing risk for 2018.

During the year Arion Bank has issued EMTN private placements in NOK and SEK for an equivalent of ISK 19.6 billion, issued a total of ISK
29.9 billion of covered bonds and issued commercial paper amounting to ISK 20 billion.
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Endorsement and statement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

Capital and dividend

Arion Bank is financially robust, as reflected in its leverage ratio of 15.4%, see Note 43. Return on equity was 6.6% during the year. The
capital ratio of the Bank, according to the Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002, was 24.0% and the corresponding Tier 1 ratio was
23.6%. The decrease from the previous year is due to the decision taken at a shareholders' meeting on 12 February on a proposed dividend
of ISK 25 billion, based on profit generated prior to 2017, to be paid over the next few weeks. The reason the Bank's capital position is so
strong is that Kaupthing, the majority shareholder, has, until now, not wished to be paid a divided because of its agreement with the
government. The Bank aims to reduce its CET 1 ratio to 17% over the next few years through further dividend payments or buying its own
shares. The Bank will remain financially robust, both in terms of the requirements of regulators and by international standards. The debt
ratio is expected to be at least 10% after the above reduction of CET 1.

The Board of Directors proposes that net earnings be added to equity and that no dividend be paid in 2018 for the fiscal year 2017, for now.
The Board of Directors has the authority to propose that the Bank pay dividends or other disbursement of equity and may convene a special
shareholders' meeting, prior to Annual general meeting in 2019, to propose a payment.

Group ownership

Kaupthing ehf. has a controlling share in Arion Bank hf through its subsidiary Kaupskil ehf. At the end of 2017 Kaupskil held 57.41% of share
capital. Kaupskil ehf. also controls the 9.99% shareholding of Taconic Capital Advisors UK LLP through TCA New Sidecar Il S.A.R.L. and 6.58%
shareholding of Sculptor Investments S.A.R.L., an affiliated entity of Och-Ziff Capital Management Group. Other shareholders are Attestor
Capital LLP through Trinity Investment Designated Activity Company, which holds 10.44%, and Goldman Sachs International through ELQ
Investors Il Ltd, which holds holds 2.57%. Icelandic State Financial Investments holds 13.00% on behalf of the Icelandic government. On 14
February 2018 changes among the shareholders of the Bank were announced, see further information in Note 38.

The Board of Directors has eight members, four women and four men. Furthermore, three Alternate Directors (two men and one woman)
are elected and they attend meetings of the Board of Directors in the event that a Director resigns or is unable to attend. The ratio of men to
women is therefore in compliance with the law which states that companies with more than 50 employees should ensure that the ratio of
either gender on the Board of Directors should not be less than 40%. Six Directors are nominated by Kaupskil ehf., one by Attestor Capital
LLP and one by Icelandic State Financial Investments. Seven Directors and two Alternates are independent of Arion Bank and its day-to-day
managers as well as of Arion Bank's significant shareholders.

On 10 May 2017 Monica Caneman, Chairman of the Board of Directors, decided to step down from the Board of Directors of Arion Bank. On
23 June 2017 Eva Cederbalk was elected as a new Director to the Board of Arion Bank and was elected Chairman of the Board on 26 June
2017. Gudrun Johnsen, the Vice Chairman of the Board, served as interim Chairman of the Board from May 2017 until June 2017. On 30
November Steinunn K. Thérdardoéttir was elected as a new Director to the Board of Arion Bank replacing Gudrin Johnsen, who stepped
down from the Board of Directors.

Risk management

The Group faces various risks arising from its day-to-day operations as a financial institution. Managing risk is therefore a core activity within
the Group. The key to effective risk management is a process of on-going identification of significant risk, quantification of risk exposure,
actions to limit risk and constant monitoring of risk. This process of risk management and the ability to evaluate, manage and correctly price
the risk encountered is critical to the Group's continuing profitability as is the ability to ensure that the Group's exposure to risk remains
within acceptable levels. The Group's risk management, its structure and main risk factors are described in the notes, starting at Note 40.

Corporate governance

The Board of Directors of Arion Bank is committed to good corporate governance and endeavours to promote responsible behavior and
corporate culture within Arion Bank for the benefit of all stakeholders. Arion Bank has to this end devised a corporate governance statement
which is designed to help foster open and honest relations between the Board of Directors, shareholders, customers and other stakeholders,
such as the Bank's employees and the general public. In December 2015 Arion Bank was recognized as a company which had achieved
excellence in corporate governance. The recognition applies for three years unless significant changes are made to the Bank’s management
or ownership.

The Board of Directors is the supreme authority in the affairs of the Bank between shareholders’ meetings. The Board tends to those
operations of the Bank which are not considered part of the day-to-day business, i.e. it makes decisions on issues which are unusual or of a
significant nature. The Board of Directors appoints a Chief Executive Officer who is responsible for the day-to-day operations in accordance
with a strategy set out by the Board. The CEO hires the Executive Management. There are four Board subcommittees: the Board Audit
Committee, the Board Risk Committee, the Board Credit Committee and the Board Remuneration Committee. The committee members are
all Directors and there is one expert member on the Board Audit and Risk Committee.
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Endorsement and statement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

The main roles of the Board, as further specified in the rules of procedure of the Board, include approving the Bank's strategy, supervising
financial affairs and accounting and ensuring that appropriate internal controls are in place. The Board ensures that the Bank has active
Internal Audit, Compliance and Risk Management departments. The Internal Auditor is appointed by the Board of Directors and works
independently of other departments of the Bank in accordance with a charter from the Board. The Internal Auditor provides independent
and objective assurance and advice designed to add value and improve the Bank's operations. The Compliance Officer, who reports directly
to the CEO, works independently within the Bank in accordance with a charter from the Board. The role of Compliance is to apply effective
precautionary measures to ensure that Arion Bank complies at all times with the law, regulations and good business practices, and to foster
an affirmative corporate culture in this respect.

Corporate governance at Arion Bank is described in more detail in the Bank's Corporate Governance Statement which is contained in the
unaudited appendix to the Financial Statement and on the website www.arionbanki.is. The Corporate Governance Statement is based on
legislation, regulations and recognized guidelines in force when the Bank's annual financial statements are adopted by Board of Directors.
This statement is prepared in accordance with the Financial Undertakings Act No. 161/2002 and Guidelines on Corporate Governance, 5th
edition, issued by the Icelandic Chamber of Commerce, SA — Business Iceland and Nasdaq Iceland in May 2015. Corporate governance at
Arion Bank complies with the guidelines with a few exceptions, which are explained in more detail in the Corporate Governance Statement.

Sustainability

Arion Bank takes an active role in our society and its development. Financial institutions are one of the pillars of society and our role is to
help our customers, both individuals and companies, reach their goals. The employees are guided by the Bank's cornerstones: we make a
difference, we say what we mean and we get things done. The Bank's code of ethics also serves as a key to responsible decision-making at
Arion Bank. The code of ethics is approved by the Board of Directors.

Arion Bank has played an important role in the regeneration of the Icelandic economy, not least in the rebuilding of the Icelandic stock
market. The Bank has played an active role in more than 60% of stock offerings in recent years, including all offerings since 2015. The Bank is
dedicated to supporting the Icelandic business sector and with this aim in mind has actively supported innovation and it has helped to set up
two business accelerators, Startup Reykjavik and Startup Energy Reykjavik, where entrepreneurs are given the opportunity to develop their
business ideas. Startup Reykjavik is fully owned by Arion Bank, while Startup Energy Reykjavik is a joint project with several leading players
on the Icelandic energy market. During the year Arion Bank invested in 9 startups which participated in the business accelerators and it has
now invested in more than 80 such companies in the last few years. The Bank has also invested more than ISK 1 billion in the venture capital
fund Eyrir Sprotar and supported innovation at primary and secondary level schools across Iceland.

Lean management has been introduced across the Bank with the aim of improving service and eliminating waste. Constant improvements
are integral to the Bank's culture. Improvements are recorded, targets set and then followed up on. During the year an average of 7.5
improvements were made per employee. In keeping with lean management there has been a strong focus on increasing digital services and
10 new digital solutions for customers were introduced during the year. The principal objective of the Bank's digital solutions is to make
things easier for the customer and to make banking more convenient. Digital solutions lessen the ecological footprint of the Bank and its
customers by reducing the number of trips made by customers to branches and cutting back on the use of paper. The Bank also places great
importance on being able to provide first-class advice at its branches and its employees also provide financial guidance to customers in order
to help them gain a better understanding of their own finances.

Since the Bank was founded one its key objectives has been to run an efficient and profitable business and to safeguard the Bank's financial
strength by meeting all capital and liquidity requirements. Internal control has been systematically reinforced and at the end of 2017 around
44 people worked in this area. Arion Bank has been recognized for good corporate governance. Arion Bank has been awarded Equal Pay
Certification by the labour union VR and has implemented a quality system which aims to eliminate the gender pay gap.

In 2017 the Bank continued to implement its policy on sustainability, which was approved by the Board of Directors in late 2016 and
presented to employees. Workshops were held during the year with employees to discuss the new sustainability policy and what employees
could do in their day-to-day work to make the Bank an even more socially responsible business. The Bank also worked on devising a formal
policy on responsible investments which will be implemented in the Bank's investment and lending processes. This work will continue in
2018. During the year the Bank became a signatory to the United Nations Principles on Responsible Investment.

In 2015 Arion Bank signed the City of Reykjavik and Festa's Declaration on Climate Change and in in 2016 in collaboration with an Icelandic
innovation company, Klappir Green Solutions, the Bank assessed its ecological footprint and set itself a target on how to reduce it. The Bank
continued to work on these issues in 2017 and the 2017 annual report will again contain a detailed report on social responsibility and
sustainability at the Bank. The report takes into account non-financial information highlighted by Nasdaq Iceland, the UN's global objectives
and the 10 principles in the UN Global Compact in which Arion Bank became a participant in 2016. Arion Bank's 2017 annual report will
provide more in-depth coverage of environmental, social and HR issues at the Bank as stipulated in Article 66 d of the Annual Accounts Act,
and the risk report will as usual deal with the main risks connected with the Bank's operations.
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Endorsement of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer

The Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the year ended 31 December 2017 have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and additional requirements in the Icelandic Financial Statements Act,
Financial Undertakings Act and Rules on Accounting for Credit Institutions.

It is our opinion that the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial performance of the Group for the year 2017 and its
financial position as at 31 December 2017.

Furthermore, in our opinion the Financial Statements and the Endorsement of the Board of Directors and the CEO give a fair view of the
development and performance of the Group's operations and its position and describe the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the

Group.

The Board of Directors and the CEO have today discussed the Financial Statements of Arion Bank for the year 2017 and confirm them by
means of their signatures. The Board of Directors and the CEO recommend that the Financial Statements be approved at the Annual General

Meeting of Arion Bank.

Reykjavik, 14 February 2018

Board of Directors

Eon Gt L

Eva Cederbalk
Chairman
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Théra Hallgrimsd
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Chief Executive Officer
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- Hoskuldur H. Olafsson
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Independent Auditor's report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Arion Bank hf.

Opinion

We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of Arion Bank hf. for the year ended December 31, 2017 which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and the notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of Arion
Bank hf. as at December 31, 2017, its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and additional requirements in the Icelandic
Financial Statement Act.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of Arion Bank hf. in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) and the Icelandic Institute of State Authorized Public Accountants (FLE), Code of Ethics and we have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Loan valuation and loss provisioning

Loans to customers is the largest class of asset on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. The management of the Bank
exercise significant judgement when determining both when and
how much to record as loan impairment provisions. Because of the
significance of these judgements and the size of loans to customers,
the audit of loan impairment provisions is a key audit matter.

The basis of the provisions is summarized in the accounting policies
in note 54 ans 56 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue recognition

We have examined loan valuation policies, tested the relevant
controls over the impairment process and assessed the technique
management uses to estimate incurred but not reported losses.
This includes testing of controls the Bank has in place for capturing
loans that needs to be reviewed for impairment and their
forbearance strategy.

We selected a sample, of loans from the full population, both
performing and non-performing loans. For selected sample we
have challenged the appropriateness of management's key
processes and assumptions used in the calculations of impairment
for loans and advances and assessed whether the provisions are in
accordance with IFRS. This included the impaired accounts and
valuation of underlying collateral.

Interest income and fee and commission income are key elements
to the core business of the Bank. Those are the largest items of the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Both revenue sources are subject to contractual terms and highly
reliant on IT controls and other controls within the Bank's control
environment. Therefore, we consider the interest income and fee
and commission income as key audit matter.

The basis for revenue recognition and accounting policies are
presented in note 49 to 50 the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2017

We reviewed the policies, processes and controls surrounding the
revenue recognition. We have tested relevant controls related to
accounting for interest income and fee and commission income. We
have tested the appropriateness of the interest calculation in
accordance with IAS 39.

We tested interest income by select sample of loans and compare
the underlying data to the loans system. We also tested the
interest income and fee income using analytical procedures.

We selected sample of loans to ensure that interest is being
accrued correctly.



Independent Auditor's report

Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in the audit

IT controls

Arion Bank is significantly dependent on their IT-systems to, serve We have reviewed the policies and processes related to IT
customers, support their business processes, ensure complete and applications. We have tested relevant controls related to change
accurate processing of financial transactions and support the overall management, access rights and IT operation of material IT systems
internal control framework. Many of the Bank's internal controls related to financial reporting.

over financial reporting are depending upon automated application
controls and completeness and integrity of reports generated by A large majority of controls were operating effectively and did not
the IT-systems. Given the high dependency on technology, we require further action. For the remaining few, we performed
consider this a key audit matter for our audit. additional testing in order to determine whether we could place
reliance on the completeness and accuracy of system generated
information.

Other information

The Board of Directors and CEO are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the unaudited appendix to the
Financial Statements, 5-year overview, key figures, unaudited quarterly statements in note number 5 and Endorsement and statements by
the Board of Directors and the CEO.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon, except the confirmation regarding the Endorsement and statements by the Board of Directors and the CEO as
stated below.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

In accordance with Paragraph 2 article 104 of the Icelandic Financial Statement Act no. 3/2006, we confirm to the best of our knowledge
that the accompanying the Endorsement and the statement by the Board of Directors and the CEO includes all information required by the
Icelandic Financial Statement Act that is not disclosed elsewhere in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the CEO for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and additional requirements in the Icelandic
Financial Statement Act, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors and the CEO determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for assessing Arion Bank hf.'s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Independent Auditor's report

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Arion Banks hf.'s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsiblefor our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors and the Board Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors and the Board Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors and the Board Audit committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Képavogur, 14 February 2018
Deloitte ehf.

M &WW V\/w/DMon

Pall Grétar Sfelngrimsson Gunnar Thorvardarson
blic Accountant State Authorized Public Accountant
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year 2017

Income Statement

INTEIEST INCOMIE ..ttt e e s ettt e e e e s bbbt e e e e s ab b eeeeseaaanbeeeessssbnneeeessnrnneeeens
INEEIEST EXPENSE .ttt ettt ettt e e et et e et eeaeeeaeaeeaeaaaaaaaaeaaaaaeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeaeaesanaannnns
Net iNterest INCOME .....ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s ssss s ss s s s s s s ssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnns

Fee and COMMISSION INCOME ..c.viiiuiiiieeieeieeseesteete et et esteeseesae e beesaeesseeessaesseeseesseeeneeenseenseenseessneans
Fee and COMMISSION EXPENSE ...ueeeiurieiiieeeiiieeiieeeireeeeseeesseeeeseeesseeessseesssseeassseseasseeessseesnsseeessseeesnns
Net fee and COMMISSION INCOME ....cciiiiiiiieeiiiiiiiiinereiiiiissrretsissssssnessssssssssnsnsssssssssnssassssssssnsssssssssnns

Net fINANCIAl INCOME ...eiiiieiece ettt e e st e saaeeae e beesreessseesseesseesseesnaeaneennes
NEt INSUFANCE INCOME .iiiiiiiiiiiee ettt et e e e et e e e s et ee e s s s abbaeeeeessabbaaeeeeassaseeaeesesssssaeeessanssrsnnens
Share of profit of associates and Net iIMPAIrMENT ........ccccviviieiieciecece e

Other OpPerating INCOME ......coiiiiiiiiiieieee ettt b ettt s bt et besbe st

Operating income
Salaries and related EXPENSE .....uiiiiiee ettt s e e st e e s e e s e e e s abe e e saae e e s be e e snaeeenraeenns

Other operating expense ....

BaNK JBVY ittt e a et e st e e e bt e s ba e e e bt e e e na bt e e nnteeeanteeeateeenraeeenaee s
Net IMPAITMENT ...ooiiiiiiii e s s

EQrnings DEfOre TaX ...cccccceeeiiiiiiiineiiiiiiicnneresesiscsneesessssesssansesssessssssnssssesssssnsssssssssssnssssssssssssnnsassssans

INCOME TAX EXPENSE ...cvviiiiiiiiiie e bbb sb s sa s
Net earnings from continuing OPErations ..........cccveveeeiciieeiiiiieiniseninne e

Discontinued operations, NEt OF TaX .......ccccviiiiiiiiiriiiiiee et

NET AININGS .uuuueriiiiiiiiii s s sasasasasasasasssassssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssnsssssssnsnsnsnns

Attributable to

Shareholders Of ArioN BANnK .........cocveiiiiieeiiee ettt ee e et e e e e s etae e e tbe e e aseeesasaeenaseeesneeenans

NON-CONLIOIING INTEIEST .vvvieeiiieeeie et e s e e ettt e e st e e e s ate e e s saeeesneeesnneeessaeessseaenee

NET CAIMINGS ...vvvveereererrssnnesesssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnes

Earnings per share from continuing operations

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of Arion Bank (ISK) ...............

Other Comprehensive Income

LA L Q=TT 4T £ N

Net gain on AFS financial assets, NETt Of TaX .....ccvvvieriiriiieiieniere et

Exchange difference on translating foreign subsidiaries ..........ccccccvcveeviieeeiien e

Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods .

Total COMPrehenSIiVe INCOME .....uuuiiiiiiiiiiineiiiiiiiiieeriiiiiisrersiessssssessiesesssssssesssssssssssssssssssssnsasssssss

Attributable to

Shareholders Of AriON BAnK .........ccveeiiieriirienieeieesieeseestesreesteesteesaesbe e teesseessaessteeseesseesssessseensesnses

NON-CONTIOHING INTEIEST .oveviieiiieeete ettt ee e e e e e st e e e s ate e e s nteeesseeesneeessseeesseeesnsseaenes

Total coMPreRensiVe INCOME ........eueueeeeememememenemenenenenenenenennenneensesnsnsnenensnenensnensnenenesenssesesssesssessssssnses

Comparative figures have been changed, see Note 1.

The Notes on pages 17 to 94 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2017 2016
57,089 61,655
(27,254)  (31,755)
29,835 29,900
29,777 23,887
(14,420) (9,909)
15,357 13,978
4,091 5,162
2,093 1,395
(925) 908
2,927 3,203
53,378 54,546
(17,189)  (16,659)
(12,772)  (13,881)
(3,172) (2,872)
186 7,236
20,431 28,370
(5,806) (6,631)
14,625 21,739
(206) -
14,419 21,739
14,400 21,147
19 592
14,419 21,739
7.30 10.57
14,419 21,739
- (2,903)

(5) 182

(5) (2,721)
14,414 19,018
14,395 18,426
19 592
14,414 19,018

Amounts are in ISK millions




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2017

Assets Notes 2017 2016
Cash and balances With CeNtral BAnK ..........ccoccuvieeeeiiiiiiieee e e ceciireee e e eesiareeeeeeesaareeeeeseesnneeeessensnnees 18 139,819 87,634
LOANS tO Credit INSTILUTIONS ....vviiiieeecieec ettt ettt e et e eere e e ebe e e eebeeesabseesebeeessaeesnsseesanseeennnes 19 86,609 80,116
LOGNS 10 CUSTOMEBIS ...uuiiiiiiitt e eeear e b e eeeaseaaaeseseesssesaeseeeesseseseaeaeeeseeeeeeeraraeseaeeeaaeaeaeeaeaeaaeasaaanees 20 765,101 712,422
FINGNCIAL INSTIUMENTS 1.eiiiiviieiiiecciee ettt et ete e et e e eetteesetteeeetbeeeesbeeeasseeeensaeeeasaeesseeesseeesbseesreeennes 21-23 109,450 117,456
INVESEMENT PrOPEITY ..vvviiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e s e e e e e s bbb e e e e e s sabtaeeesessabaaeeeessasbbaaeeesesnssraeeeens 23 6,613 5,358
INVESTMENTS 1N @SSOCIATES eeiieiiiiiieeiiiiiitte ettt e e e sttt e e e e sar e e e s s ssbbe e e e e s ssanbbeeeeessnnraeeesesnnnnnees 25 760 839
aY =T aF=d] o LT T Y=Y SRS 26 13,848 11,057
LI D FEY= £ O TSP PP SR PPPPPPON 27 450 288
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale ........c..occeceviriiiiiininine e 28 8,138 4,418
[0 YT o T =] &P PRRRRPPNY 29 16,966 16,436

Total Assets 1,147,754 1,036,024

Liabilities
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank .........cccueiiiiiiiiiie it 22 7,370 7,987
[ D LT oo Y1 £ USSP 22 462,161 412,064
Financial liabilities at fair value . 22 3,601 3,726
LI D L o 11 L= PSSR 27 6,828 7,293
(04 V=T =T o 11 =TSSR 30 57,062 54,094
BOTTOWINES .veeeeeiiiitttee ettt ettt e e s e ettt e e e sttt e e e e s st b et e e e e e ans et eeesesnsnaeeeesaanssbeeeessanbbaeeeesannnnraeeaennnns 22,31 384,998 339,476

Total Liabilities 922,020 824,640

Equity
Share capital and ShAare PremMiUM ......oo it be e s st e be e sbeesasesanas 33 75,861 75,861
OTREI FESEIVES ...vveiieee ettt e e ettt e e e e e e e e e s e tbbeeeeeeeetbaaeeeeasasssaaaeeeasssaaeeeeaassaaseessansssaseeesssnssrnns 33 16,774 19,761
RELAINEA BAININES ..eiitiiiieiieie ettt ettt sttt e sae e st e st e e beesbeesabesabesabeebeanssessaesntaenseansaenann 132,971 115,590

Total Shareholders' Equity 225,606 211,212

NON-CONTIOIING INTEIEST . .evieiiieeeiee ettt e e e e st e e e s e e e saae e e sabeeessbaeesnsaeesnseeeennneeensseeenns 128 172
Total Equity 225,734 211,384

Total Liabilities and Equity 1,147,754 1,036,024

The Notes on pages 17 to 94 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year 2017

Total
Share capital share- Non-
and share Other Retained holders' controlling Total
premium reserves earnings equity interest equity
Equity 1January 2017 .......ccccevevererercnnnsssnnnssseessesssnsssssnsssnns 75,861 19,761 115,590 211,212 172 211,384
NEt BAMMINES ...vvviieeiiriiieee e - - 14,400 14,400 19 14,419
Translation difference .......cccevveveercieeie s - (5) - (5) - (5)
Total comprehensive inCOmMe .........cooveeevneeniiiiiiiisennennnn. - (5) 14,400 14,395 19 14,414
Reserve for investments in subsidiaries - (3,001) 3,001 - - -
Reserve for investments in associates .......cc.ccevvverreereennnene - 16 (16) - - -
Reserve for investments in securities .........cccocvecveeveeseenns - 4 (4) - - -
Dividend to non-controlling interest .......c.ccceeeeveeriernennne. - - - - (63) (63)
Equity 31 December 2017 .......cccovvueeriiiiiinsnnnnninssssssnnensssssnns 75,861 16,774 132,971 225,606 128 225,734
Equity 1January 2016 ........ccoeervieiiiiiiiinnininiiinnnnnnnnsnssssssnnnn 75,861 4,548 112,377 192,786 9,108 201,894
NEt €arNINGS «...veeeeiieeeiieeeree et - - 21,147 21,147 592 21,739
Net gain on AFS financial assets ........ccceceevveervieeieereeseenenns - (2,903) - (2,903) - (2,903)
Translation difference ........ccoovevierieeiiiieeeeeeeees - 182 - 182 - 182
Total comprehensive iNncome ........cceeieecreeeniieccinneneenennan. - (2,721) 21,147 18,426 592 19,018
Reserve for investments in subsidiaries .........ccccoveveviuenne. - 17,012 (17,012) - - -
Reserve for investments in associates ........ccceveveeveereeenenen. - 23 (23) - - -
Reserve for investments in SeCUrities ..........ccocevvverveeneenns - 899 (899) - - -
Decrease due to sale of subsidiary .......cccceeveveveeceeveennnnnen. - - - - (141) (141)
Disbursement of share capital and
dividend to non-controlling interest ..........cccccvevvveveeennen. - - - - (9,387) (9,387)
Equity 31 December 2016 ...........ccccerenneeiiieeninseenssseesssnneens 75,861 19,761 115,590 211,212 172 211,384

In June 2016 the Icelandic Parliament approved amendments to the Financial Statements Act including new requirements on equity reserves
in relation to unrealized profit from financial assets. The amendments may affect future dividend payments to the shareholders of Arion
Bank, see Note 33.

The Notes on pages 17 to 94 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash flows
for the year 2017

Operating activities 2017 2016
INET CAININES ..etteeieieititeee ettt e ettt e e e s bttt e e e s et e eeeseasab et e e e s essbb e e eeeesase b e e eeseaaanntaeeesensnsbaeeesennnbnneeesssnnnnnne 14,419 21,739
Non-cash items included in net earnings and other adjustMEeNtS ........ccccvvrieriieicieeeee e (25,372) (30,516)
Changes in operating assets and Habilities ..........c.ooiiiiiiiiecic ettt e be et eeareennas 47,923 (3,404)
INTEIEST FECEIVEA ......vvveieee ettt ettt e e e ee e e e e e et tbba e e e e e eebbaaeeeeeasasbaaeeeeeasssssseeseeasbasseeessasbsaseeeesansraseeeeannns 60,428 61,335
L0 =T Ty o= Y e USRS (28,623) (30,926)
DIVIAENA FECERIVEA .....evvviiee ettt ettt e e e e et e e e e e esabaeeeeeeetaaaeeeeeeeesbbaeeeeesesbsaeeeeesasasbaeeseeaasssaaeeeeensssaseeessenssres 320 2,280
INCOME TAX PAI 1.ttt st sttt e be e sht e s a b e et e et e e sa e e s aeeeabeeabe e atesasesabeenbeesatesabesnbeenbeenseannsannee (6,432) (3,032)

Net cash from operating activities 62,663 17,476

Investing activities

ACUISTEION OF @SSOCIATES ...eiiveeiiieiieitie ettt ettt et et e e st e st e s i b e e be e s beeshbesabeeabe e bt esseesateeabeenseenaeesasesnseen (961) (76)
Acquisition of subsidiary ........cccccevveeriiriiere e . (2,123) (5,300)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired through business combinations ...........c.cccceeieviiininiencnincceeeee 127 1,068
Proceeds from SAlE Of @SSOCIATES ......ccvveiiiireic i ettt et e et e et e e et e e ebe e e e baeesetaeeeesteeeesbeesanbeeeenseeeeseeeereeeen 41 27,291
Dividend received from @SSOCIATES ......c.eiiuiiriiriiiieeee ettt ettt et et sae e st e st e e beesbeesabesabeenbeenbeenseenaeenaee 74 153
Disposal of subsidiary .................. - 293
Acquisition of intangible assets (1,657) (1,247)
Acquisition of property and EQUIPMENT ......ccuieiieiiereeie et seeseeeteeseese e s e e e teeeeesseessaeenseeseesseesreessseesseesseesseens (776) (1,040)
Proceeds from sale of property and @qQUIPMENT ......ccuoiiiiiiiiiiiinicee et 239 224
Net cash (to) from investing activities (5,036) 21,366
Financing activities
Payment of subordinated labilities ........cooueriiriiiiiiiieeee et ettt st et enbaesaeesareens - (8,785)
Disbursement of share capital and dividend to non-controlling iNtErest ..........cceeceeeeereerceeee e (63) (9,386)
Net cash used in financing activities (63) (18,171)
Net increase in cash and Cash QUIVAIENTS ........c.ooiiiiiiiii e sttt b e sbeesaee s 57,564 20,671
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the YEar ........ccvocieei et 123,933 110,000
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equIValeNnts ............ccceviiiriiiiiininic e 401 (6,738)
Cash aNd CASH EQUIVAIENTS ........cceueureirerenerieresesesesesesesetssesesessssssssesssssesesssssssssesesesssssssssssesssessassssesssesesensssene 181,898 123,933
Non-cash investing transactions
Assets acquired through foreclosure on collateral from customers with view to resale . 835 1,830
Settlement of loans through foreclosure on collateral from customers with view to resale .........ccccoeeeeveenienienns (835) (1,830)
Non-cash changes due to acquisition of United Silicon
Non-current assets and disposal groups held fOr SAIE ........cvvviiiieriiriirie e ae e 4,537 -
BOITOWINES ..ecutietiieiieeiteeetteetteeteete e teesteesae e e be e beestseesseesbeesseesseaassaeaseeaseanseesssesaseasbeenseessseesseanseensaesssesseesnseenseenseesnsenns (4,537) -
Non-cash changes due to funding agreement with Kaupthing
[D2=] o Yo 1Y 1 £ PP PP PPPOPPPPPPON - 41,409
BOITOWINES ..evtieitiieiieeiteeeteeetteeteete e teesteesae e e se e beestsessseesbeesseesssaassaeaseenseanseeassessseesseenseeesseesseenseensaensseassesaseenseenseesasenns - (41,409)

Financial effects due to the acquisition of Valitor Holding’s subsidiaries, IPS and Chip and Pin, in 2017 and the acquisition of Vordur
tryggingar hf. in 2016, see Note 3.

Comparative figures have been changed with immaterial effects on the Cash flow, see Note 1.

* Interest paid includes interest credited to deposit accounts at the end of the year.

The Notes on pages 17 to 94 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash flows
for the year 2017

Non-cash items included in net earnings 2017 2016
NET INTEIEST INCOME ..ttt ettt ettt e e et e et eete e ebeeetaeetbeebe e beeassaesseeabeesaeassessaessseenbeeseesssessseenseeseenssansseanes (29,837) (29,900)
NET IMPAIIMIENT ..ottt et e et et e s te e st e esbe e beesseeaseeeseeesseasseeaseessseesseenseesseessseenseesseesssesnseensesnseensennnen (186) (7,236)
Income tax expense .. . 5,806 6,631
L2 1 =1 VPRSPPI 3,172 2,872
Net foreign eXChange BaiN (10SS) ..cc.uiiiiiiiiiiciiecie ettt e ete et e e st e e te et e e s taesabeeaseeseesseesaseenseenteessaesssennnas (122) 1,253
Net gain on fiNANCIal INSTIUMENTS .......iiiiiiiiecie e et e e e e et e e steessaeesteenteenseenseesseesnseenneas (3,649) (4,135)
Depreciation and amortization ...........ccccuveennee.. . 2,132 1,842
Share of profit of associates and NEt IMPAIrMENT .......cciciiiiieceee e e e e s e e e s rae e reereennes 925 (908)
Investment property, fair Value Change .........cccocuiiiiiiiiiii e (1,036) (290)
Revised Depositors' and Investors' GUuarantee FUN EXPENSE .......ecveecueerieeireeieeieesreeseeseesseesseesseessaesseessseeseesseens (2,669) -
Discontinued operations, net of tax 206 -
(04 =T o= Y-S (114) (645)
Non-cash items included in NEt @arNINGS ......cccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e s s se e (25,372) (30,516)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Mandatory reserve With CENTral BANK ..........coccueeieiieiiiiie i st ettt eesee e ste e e seeessaeeesbeeessaeesbaeesnsaeesssseeenssesennseeas 108 3,303
Loans to credit institutions, excluding Bank aCCOUNTS ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiirierie et sttt (2,879) (22,769)
[T T E 3 o T o1y o] 4 1= TSRS (59,413) (46,537)
Financial instruments and financial liabilities at fair Value ...........coooviiiiiiiiiiiicce e e 15,512 11,854
Investment property . . (204) 1,440
OthEI @SSEES vttt sttt b e e bbbt bbb he et b e bbbt eh et e b bt eae et res 993 481
Due to credit institutions and CeNral BanK ..........cccuecierieeiiieieecieste et e e re et e e e e sreesra e s e e steeseaesssessseensaenseannas (702) (3,151)
DBPOSIES vttt ettt ettt ettt ettt b bbb h bbbt b bt e h e bbb a e bR bt h bbbt bt et e bt eb e et et et sae et ates 50,653 (9,586)
Borrowings ...... . 42,071 68,016
Other liabilities 1,784 (6,455)
Changes in operating assets and labilities .......ccccccccrreeiiiiiiiiiieeiniiicrnrereiecceneee e csseneeesssesssnnsessesssssnnsansssans 47,923 (3,404)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and balances With CENTral BanK ...........ccceiiiiriiiieiiiieieeeee ettt s s snenae s 139,819 87,634
BaNK @CCOUNTS ..eeieieiiiiiieee et eecttt e e e ettt e e e e et te e e e e s e et baa e e e e e s sssaeeeeeaassssasaeseasssaseeeseasssasseeeseanssasaeeeasansreneeeennnnns 51,303 45,631
Mandatory reserve deposit With CeNtral BanK ..........ocueiieiiieiniiinienie ettt sie st saeseeesaeesaeesaaesasesnneas (9,224) (9,332)
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS .......ccccueeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicer e as e e s s aas 181,898 123,933

The Notes on pages 17 to 94 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

Arion banki hf., the Parent Company, was established 18 October 2008 and is incorporated and domiciled in Iceland. The registered
office of Arion banki hf. is located at Borgartun 19, Reykjavik. The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31. December
2017 comprise the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group").

1. Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements are consolidated and have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as adopted by the European Union and additional requirements in the Icelandic Financial Statements Act, Financial Undertakings
Act and rules on Accounting for Credit Institutions.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of Arion Bank on 14 February
2018.

The same accounting policies, presentation and methods of computation are followed in these Consolidated Financial Statements as
were applied in the presentation of the Group's Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Amendments to IFRS effective for 2017 did not have a material effect on the results for the year 2017.

Basis of measurement
The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:

— financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value;

financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value are measured at fair value;

financial assets classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair value;

investment properties are measured at fair value; and
— non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell.

Functional and presentation currency

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Icelandic krona (ISK), which is the Parent Company's functional currency,
rounded to the nearest million, unless otherwise stated. At the end of the year the exchange rate of the ISK against USD was 103.70
and 124.52 for EUR (31.12.2016: USD 112.90 and EUR 119.18).

Comparative figures

In the Statement of Comprehensive Income for 2017 net income from non-current assets held for sale are presented among other
operating income. Prior to 2017 net income from non-current assets held for sale was classified as discontinued operations, net of tax.
Comparative figures have been changed accordingly by reducing discontinued operations, net of tax by ISK 886 million, increasing other
operating income by ISK 1,107 million and increasing income tax by ISK 221 million.

The effects on the Statement of cash flow was shift between Non-cash items included in net earnings and other adjustments and
Changes in operating assets and liabilities of ISK 1,107 million.

Methods used for calculation on Interest received and Interest paid in Statement of Cash flows were changed remotely and
comparative figures were updated according. The effect were reclass beteween lines within the category Net cash from operating
activities.

2. Significant accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations which are dealt with separately, that the directors
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in Financial Statements.
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2. Significant accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies, continued

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment losses on loans

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least quarterly as further described in Note 53. The specific
component of the total allowance for impairment applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based on
management's best estimate of the present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgements about a debtor's financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral. Each
impaired asset is assessed on its merits, the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are independently
reviewed by the Credit Risk function.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidated Financial Statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognized in the statement of profit or
loss. For investment properties, either a valuation methodology based on present value calculations, as there is a lack of
comparable market data because of the nature of the properties, or the investment properties were valued by reference to
transactions involving properties of a similar nature, location and condition.

Impairment of intangible assets

The carrying amounts of goodwill, infrastructure and customer relationship and related agreements are reviewed annually to
determine whether there is indication of impairment. If any such indication exists the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized
in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of an assets is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Legal entities acquired exclusively with view to resale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value, less cost to sell.
For most part, fair value at the date of classification of these legal entities was calculated using valuation models based on
discontinued future cash flows that incorporated significant non-market observable inputs and assumptions. The use of reasonably
possible alternative inputs and assumptions to these models, in particular changes to the discount rate employed(representing the
required rate of return on equity), could have impact on the value of these disposal groups.

Real estates acquired exclusively with view to resale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell.
Fair value at the date of classification is based on independent property values or management valuation. As the fair value
measurement of real estates is based on valuation techniques there is uncertainty about the actual fair value of assets.
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3. The Group

Shares in main subsidiaries in which Arion Bank held a direct interest at the end of the year
Equity interest

Operating activity Currency 2017 2016
Arion Bank Mortgages Instit. Investor Fund, Borgartun 19, Reykjavik, Iceland ..... Retail banking ISK 100.0% 100.0%
BG12 slhf., Katrinartun 2, Reykjavik, Iceland .........cccocoevvveeiieenieniinieeeceeeeee, Holding company ISK 62.0% 62.0%
EAB 1 ehf., Borgartin 19, Reykjavik, Iceland ..........ccccoceevvieeieieeeciieeciee e Holding company ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Eignarhaldsfélagid Landey ehf., Ogurhvarf 4a, Képavogur, Iceland ..........cccocv..... Real estate ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Okkar liftryggingar hf., Borgarttn 25, Reykjavik, Iceland .........cccccoevenirveiinenene Life insurance ISK - 100.0%
Stefnir hf., Borgartlin 19, Reykjavik, Iceland .........cccccveevveevieveeniece e Asset management ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Valitor Holding hf., Dalshraun 3, Hafnarfjordur, Iceland ..........ccccoceevieveninennnee. Payment solutions ISK 100.0% 100.0%
Vordur tryggingar hf., Borgartin 25, Reykjavik, Iceland ........cccoccvevveevcieececceennnnne Insurance ISK 100.0% 100.0%

In addition the Bank holds the subsidiary United Silicon which is classified as Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale, see
Note 28.

In 2017 the Bank's subsidiary Valitor Holding hf. acquired two companies; IPS - International Payment Services Ltd. and Chip and Pin
Solutions Ltd. The purpose of the acquisition is to strengthen Valitor's direct channel market position in the UK as the focus has been on
partnership in that market until now. Further information on intangible assets related to those two companies are in Note 26. The
transactions are as follows:

Purchase price, Paid iN CASH ....c..iviiiiiiii ettt b e e b bbbt st benr e sbe et nn et 2,123

Asset and liabilities of IPS and Chip and Pin at fair value:

Loans to credit inStitutions (Bank @CCOUNTS) ....ciiuiiiuiiiiiiiiiieerieesit ettt ettt ettt e sat e st e b e e be e s bt e s sbesateebeesbaesasesabeenbeesanenas 127
Other assets (ACCOUNES FECEIVADIES) ....icuiiiiieiieiiecte et ettt e e e st e st e e te e te e st e e e aeeeaseesse e seesssessseesseesseessaeesseesseenseenseeansennsenns 758
Other assets (Property and @QUIPMENT) .....ccuiii ittt ettt b st b e st sbe b b e sbe e e e b e sbesbeennennene 21
Intangible assets, Other than SOOAWIIl .........coiuuiiiiii et e e s e st e e st e e esba e e s st e e eneeeenseesnaseeennseeesaseeean 404
Other [iabilites (ACCOUNTS PAYADIE) .. ..iiuiiiiiiiieieeeest ettt ettt et st e bt e b e e s bt e st tessbeesbeebeessaesatesnseebaesseesabessbeenseenes (960)
Fair value of asset and abilities ...........cccveiiiieiiiiiiiiieic s s e 350
Calculated BOOUWIll ....cccciueeeiiiiiiiiinieiiiiniiereninnesssrer s sesssssssss e ssssssssssne s s sesssssssssssessssssnsssssssssssssnssssssssssansanssessssssnsssssssssssnns 1,773

On 1 January 2017 Voérdur tryggingar hf. acquired the Bank's 100% shareholding in Okkar liftryggingar hf. Following the acquisition
Vordur tryggingar merged its two life insurance subsidiaries under the name of Vordur liftryggingar hf. Combination of entities under
common control, i.e. transactions in which all the combining entities are under the control of the Group both before and after the
combination, and that control is not transitory, are outside the scope of the IFRS 3 Business combinations. Currently, there is no
specific guidance for these transactions under IFRS, therefore, as permitted by IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting and
errors, the Group has developed an accounting policy considering pronouncement of other standard-setting bodies. The assets and
liabilities recognized as a result of transactions between entities under common control are recognized at the carrying value on the
transferor's financial statements.

On 30 September 2016 Arion Bank acquired a 100% shareholding in the insurance company Vordur tryggingar hf. Vordur tryggingar hf.
is classified as a subsidiary of Arion Bank from the day of acquisition. The transaction was as follows:

PUrchase Price, PAid iN CASH ....eiiiiii et et e et e st e e st e e st e e e eteeesteeesseeeesaeeessseeessseeessseaesnsaeaansaeannsseensseesnnsen 5,300
Fair value of asset and liabilities of Vérdur tryggingar

Loans to credit inStitULioNs (BANK @CCOUNTS) ....uuviiiuieeiiiieiiieceiteeeeieeeestteeesteee e reeeetseeeetseeeesbeeessbaeesssaeeessseesasseessssesassesensseeesnseeens 1,068
Financial instruments ........cccccceeeeeecineeeeeennn, . 8,773
Intangible assets, Other than OOUWIll .........cocuiiiiiiiiiiicie ettt ste e st e et e e beesteesseeesbeeateeseensaesasesnseenseesanenes 2,045
LI D 1Y) OO P PP P PPOPPTOPRPOTN 147
(014 =T G I =] KIS OPRURRRRRPRNE 2,355
Tax liabilities ... (409)
Other liabilities (9,175)
Fair value of asset and liabilities of VOrdur tryggIiNGar .......cccccccecrcrcrcrnsesnensnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsasnsnsnnnnns 4,804
Calculated BOOAWIIl ...... ... s cs e s e s s sssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssnsssnsnsnsnnnen 496
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Operating segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's operating segments based on the Group's management and internal
reporting structure. Segment performance is evaluated based on earnings before tax. In presenting the geographic information,
segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of customers or assets.

Inter segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis. Operating segments pay and receive interest to and from Treasury on an
arm's length basis to reflect the allocation of capital, funding cost and relevant risk premium.

Operating segments
The Group comprises the following operating segments:

Asset Management comprises Institutional Asset Management, Private Banking, Investment Services and Pension Fund Administration.
Asset Management manages financial assets on behalf of its customers according to a pre-determined investment strategy. In addition
the division is the main distributor of funds managed by Stefnir hf. to individuals, companies and institutional investors as well as
distributing funds managed by international fund management companies. Asset Management also administers pension funds. Stefnir
hf. is an independently operating financial company owned by Arion Bank. Stefnir manages a broad range of mutual funds, investment
funds and institutional investor funds.

Corporate Banking provides comprehensive financial services and integrated solutions across the Bank's divisions, to larger corporate
clients in Iceland. Corporate Banking provides a full range of lending products, deposit accounts, payment solutions as well as value-
added electronic corporate solutions to meet the needs of each customer.

Investment Banking is divided into Corporate Finance, Capital Markets and Research. Corporate Finance arranges the buying and
selling of companies and advises on all other major financial decisions undertaken by companies and investors such as financial
restructuring, IPO's and listing of securities. Capital Markets buys and sells securities and FX on behalf of Arion Bank's clients and
provide services regarding risk management products. Capital Markets also manages securities offerings for companies, often in co-
operation with Corporate Finance. Research is an independent research team covering the Icelandic economy and financial markets.

Retail Banking, including Arion Bank Mortgages Institutional Investor Fund, provides a comprehensive range of services in it's 24
branches all around Iceland and also through leading digital solutions featured in both an app and internet bank. This includes deposits
and loans, savings, payment cards, pension savings, insurance, securities and funds. To maximize operational efficiency the branch
network is divided into five regions clusters, with the smaller branches capitalizing on the strength of larger units within each region.
Retail Banking's brances have a total of more than 100,000 customers.

Treasury is responsible for the Bank's liquidity, currency and interest rate management. Other functions of Treasury are funds' transfer
pricing and hedging and pricing of financial products.

Other divisions and subsidiaries include Market Making in domestic securities and currencies. The subsidiaries are Valitor Holding hf.,
Vordur tryggingar hf., Okkar liftryggingar hf. (in 2016), Eignarhaldsfélagid Landey ehf., EAB 1 ehf., BG12 slhf. and other smaller entities
of the Group.

In addition to the above operating segments, the Group presents information for the corporate Headquarters carrying out support
functions such as Overhead, Risk Management, Finance (excluding Treasury and Market Making), Legal and IT. The Headquarters
information presented does not represent an operating segment.
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4. Operating segments Other Head-
Asset divisions quarters
Manage- Corporate Investment Retail and Sub- and
2017 ment Banking Banking Banking  Treasury  sidiaries Elimination Total
Net interest income .......ccccvveeerrnnnnne 502 6,002 240 15,502 6,536 1,269 (216) 29,835
Net fee and commission income ....... 4,011 1,171 1,298 4,703 (312) 4,213 273 15,357
Net financial income ................... . 145 224 (71) 19 (13) 4,052 (265) 4,091
Net insurance income - - - - - 2,224 (131) 2,093
Share of profit of associates and
net impairment - - - - - 15 (940) (925)
Other operating income .........cceeuveeen. 19 1,146 - 927 5 478 352 2,927
Operating income (loss) .....ccccceeeneees 4,677 8,543 1,467 21,151 6,216 12,251 (927) 53,378
Operating eXpense ........coceeeveerueenneene (1,138) (357) (780) (5,134) 161 (9,317)  (13,396) (29,961)
Allocated expense .......ccceeveereverevennne. (1,019) (2,424) (652) (5,905) (887) (15) 10,902 -
Bank [8VY ....ccvevviriieieiecieeeieeeeen (182) (671) (39) (1,097) (1,183) - - (3,172)
Net impairment - (1,794) (53) 2,489 70 (527) 1 186
Earnings (loss) before tax ................ 2,338 3,297 (57) 11,504 4,377 2,392 (3,420) 20,431
Net seg. rev. from ext. customers ..... 2,638 15,689 1,003 30,765 (9,044) 12,948 (621) 53,378
Net seg. rev. from other segments .... 2,039 (7,146) 464 (9,614) 15,260 (697) (306) -
Operating income (l0sS) .......ccccuueeuns 4,677 8,543 1,467 21,151 6,216 12,251 (927) 53,378
Depreciation and amortization ......... 1 - - 359 - 974 798 2,132
Total assets ....cccvvererirenisssnnnnnnessssnnns 75,564 274,917 16,165 527,652 483,794 89,936 (320,274) 1,147,754
Total liabilities ........ccceererereieieieierenns 70,233 218,243 15,164 461,724 421,930 59,609 (324,883) 922,020
Allocated equity 5,331 56,674 1,001 65,928 61,864 30,327 4,609 225,734
2016
Net interest income .......ccccvveeevennnne 535 6,436 1,104 14,992 6,093 1,233 (493) 29,900
Net fee and commission income ....... 3,863 1,082 1,808 3,537 (345) 3,885 148 13,978
Net financial iINCOME w...vevveeververerenen. (67) (12) (100) 115 332 4,617 277 5,162
Net insurance income - - - - - 1,395 - 1,395
Share of profit of associates and
netimpairment ........ccooceviiiiiininins - - 613 - - 275 20 908
Other operating income .........ccceuveee. 14 368 321 1,058 80 905 457 3,203
Operating income 4,345 7,874 3,746 19,702 6,160 12,310 409 54,546
Operating eXpense ........coceeeveereerenns (1,422) (605) (939) (6,134) (189) (7,061) (14,190) (30,540)
Allocated expense ........ccceeveerveernvennne. (882) (2,386) (827) (6,149) (876) (20) 11,140 -
Bank leVY ...covvvveiieieiecieeceees (209) (609) (41) (980) (1,033) - - (2,872)
Net impairment ........cccceeeeeeeeeeennenns - 33 1,704 5,557 7 (65) - 7,236
Earnings (loss) before tax ................ 1,832 4,307 3,643 11,996 4,069 5,164 (2,641) 28,370
Net seg. rev. from ext. customers ..... 1,908 15,919 3,225 31,064 (11,647) 12,875 1,202 54,546
Net seg. rev. from other segments .... 2,437 (8,121) 521 (11,287) 17,807 (565) (792) -
Operating iNCOME ........ereureeeereenneees 4,345 7,798 3,746 19,777 6,160 12,310 410 54,546
Depreciation and amortization ......... - 1 - 336 - 727 778 1,842
Total assets ...ccvvvvereriieiissnnnenenensssnnns 87,307 251,821 16,836 506,483 427,037 72,128 (325,588) 1,036,024
Total liabilities 81,733 193,571 13,856 433,074 394,797 43,722  (336,113) 824,640
Allocated equity ......ccovvuvereinicsisnnnnns 5,574 58,250 2,980 73,409 32,240 28,406 10,525 211,384

Income taxes and discontinued operations are excluded from the profit and loss segment information. From prior periods additional
line of allocated expense from supporting divisions to business segments has been added. Those supporting divisions are Risk
Management, Finance (excluding Treasury and Market Making), Legal, IT and Overhead. Bank levy has also been allocated to business
segments. Comparative figures for 2016 have been updated accordingly.
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4. Operating segments, continued

Geographic information

United Other North

2017 Iceland Nordic  Kingdom Europe  America Other Total
Net interest income ........ooeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeecccccce, 33,063 439 231 (4,268) 339 31 29,835
Net fee and commission income .........ccccceevveeennen. 12,578 253 313 2,194 16 3 15,357
Net financial income .......ccccoeeeveeiivveieceiciieeeeees 2,228 143 411 339 961 9 4,091
Net insurance income 2,093 - - - - - 2,093
Share of profit of associates and net impairment (925) - - - - - (925)
Other operating iNCoOMe .....ccceevveeriveeeiieeereeene 2,894 - 33 - - - 2,927
Operating income (loss) . 51,931 835 988 (1,735) 1,316 43 53,378
2016

Net interest iNCOME ......ooeeeeiererieeieneseeeeeene 32,302 1,079 114 (4,424) 791 38 29,900
Net fee and commission income . 11,815 548 50 1,495 62 8 13,978
Net financial iNCOMe ......ccevvvevvevieceeeeeeee, (500) 79 5,242 323 19 (1) 5,162
Net insurance iNCOME ......cccveeeeereciiveeeeseriiiieeee e 1,395 - - - - - 1,395
Share of profit of associates and net impairment 223 - 685 - - - 908
Other operating iNnCOMe ........ccccevereeeenininennens 3,203 - - - - - 3,203
Operating income (loss) . 48,438 1,706 6,091 (2,606) 872 45 54,546
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Quarterly statements

5. Operations by quarters, unaudited

2017 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Total
Net interest iNCOME ... 7,265 7,250 8,160 7,160 29,835
Net fee and COMMISSION INCOME ......ecocviieeirieeciee et earee e 4,654 3,865 3,508 3,330 15,357
Net fiNaNCIal INCOME ...oiiiueie et 1,620 (734) 1,975 1,230 4,091
Net iNSUranNCe iNCOME ....oovviiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e 324 716 606 447 2,093
Share of profit of associates and net impairment ........c.cocceeveevieriiennieenen. (8) 17 (900) (34) (925)
Other 0perating INCOME ...cocuviiiiiieecie e e e 69 483 1,811 564 2,927
Operating income 13,924 11,597 15,160 12,697 53,378
Salaries and related EXPENSE .......ccvueivuierieriienieeie ettt (4,565) (3,841) (4,561) (4,222) (17,189)
Other OpPerating EXPENSE .....vevueerreeieeieerieereeseeeteereese e eseesseeaeesteesseens (4,016) (3,699) (1,223) (3,834) (12,772)
BANK IBVY .ttt st s (784) (814) (777) (797) (3,172)
NEt IMPAITMENT ...ecuiieiecee e et ee e re e e e sraeennean 1,448 (2,551) 409 880 186
Earnings before tax ......cccccveiiiiiieeniiinniinnnnnninnnren s 6,007 692 9,008 4,724 20,431
INCOME tAX EXPENSE einiiiieeiiieeiteeeiree ettt e e s b e e tee e e neeesneee s (1,735) (805) (1,895) (1,371) (5,806)
Net earnings from continuing operations .. 4,272 (113) 7,113 3,353 14,625
Discontinued operations, Net of taX .....c.ccoceeviivienienie e (206) - - - (206)
NEt  arniNgs ...ccceeiiiiuiiriiiiiiietinte et s an e 4,066 (113) 7,113 3,353 14,419
2016

Net iNterest iINCOME ... 7,842 7,432 7,353 7,273 29,900
Net fee and COMMISSION INCOME ......eovvieieciieeciee et 3,765 3,466 3,528 3,219 13,978
Net financial INCOME ....coiuviiiieeccee et e 823 844 3,796 (301) 5,162
Net insurance income 731 272 247 145 1,395
Share of profit of associates and net impairment ..........cccceevvevcieviieenieenen. 198 16 17 677 908
Other operating iNCOME ...cccviiiiiieeciee e s 826 693 607 1,077 3,203
0OPerating INCOME .....cccviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s s sssssssssssssssssnes 14,185 12,723 15,548 12,090 54,546
Salaries and related EXPENSE .......ocvvevvieerieriienienie ettt (4,407) (3,826) (4,318) (4,108) (16,659)
Other OpPerating EXPENSE ....c.vcvveerieeieeieereestee e ereere e e e eesresaeesbeesreesseens (3,803) (3,349) (3,639) (3,090) (13,881)
Bank levy (682) (705) (743) (742) (2,872)
NEt IMPAITMENT .ottt 409 5,882 1,448 (503) 7,236
EQrnings before tax ......ccccviiiiiinnnniiinniinnnnenininnieninsensssssssnenee 5,702 10,725 8,296 3,647 28,370
INCOME TAX EXPENSE ..vveeuvieiieeiieeteenieesieesiresiteesteesteessaesteesteeseensaesssesseesens (1,227) (3,222) (1,419) (763) (6,631)
Net earnings from continuing operations .......ccccceeeeiiiiieiiieieieieeeieeeeeeennns 4,475 7,503 6,877 2,884 21,739
Discontinued operations, Net Of taX .......ccccceeeviieeriieciiee e - - - - -
Net  arNiNgS ...ccccueiiiiiiiniiiiiiieirt et as s an e 4,475 7,503 6,877 2,884 21,739

The half-year results were reviewed by the Bank's auditor. The quarterly statements and the split between quarters were not audited
or reviewed by the Bank's auditor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

6. Net interest income

2017 2016
Interest income
Cash and balances With CeNTral BanK ........cccueiicviiiiiieeeiee ettt et e et eeetr e e sbre e s bneesetseeseaseeeeabeesnnreeennnes 6,449 4,584
[ o = o 3N 47,832 51,910
LT ol UL 1 1= N 1,964 4,347
[0 4 1= PSSO 844 814
INEEIEST INCOME ...ciieeeeiiiiiiiieieieiereeeaeseeetteennseseeestesenssssssssesensnssssssesessnsssssssssssnssssssssessnsnssssssesssnnssssssesssnnanssnns 57,089 61,655
Interest expense
Deposits (12,725) (16,278)

Borrowings (14,449) (14,858)
SUDOFAINAtEd HHADIIILIES ...eeueieeie ettt st st e b e bt e st e s abe et e e sbeesatesateenbeesbeesanenas - (529)
(80) (90)

(27,254)  (31,755)

29,835 29,900

Net interest income from financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value ..........ccccovveveveieeieeeccieccee s 1,964 4,347
Interest income from financial assets NOt at fair VAlUE .......coocuvviiiiiiiciie et 55,125 57,308
Interest expense from financial liabilities NOt at fair VAlUE .......cccueeciieiiecie e (27,254) (31,755)
Net iNterest INCOME .....ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e ss e e se s s sssn e e sesssssssnaessessssssnnessssssssssnenns 29,835 29,900
Interest spread (the ratio of net interest income to the average carrying amount of interest bearing assets) .... 2.9% 3.1%
7. Net fee and commission income 2017 2016

Net Net

Income Expense income Income Expense income

ASSEt MANAZEMENT ...eveireeiieteeee e te e e e neeas 4,529 (366) 4,163 4,225 (245) 3,980
Cards and payment SOIULION ......cccevvveeviirienienieeiceeesee e 19,309 (13,177) 6,132 14,268 (8,975) 5,293
Collection and payment SErViCes ........cccvveveerceercveesreereeseesenens 1,563 (94) 1,469 1,478 (80) 1,398
Investment banking . 808 (43) 765 1,039 (46) 993
Lending and guarantees 2,198 - 2,198 1,685 - 1,685
Other e 1,370 (740) 630 1,192 (563) 629
Net fee and cOMmMISSiON INCOME ......eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeneneneneennanes 29,777 (14,420) 15,357 23,887 (9,909) 13,978

Asset management fees are earned by the Group on trust and fiduciary activities where the Group holds or invests assets on behalf of
the customers.
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8. Net financial income 2017 2016
DiIVIAENT INCOME vttt ettt et e e et e eete e e eetbeeeetbeeeetbeeesabaeesabesesssaeesseseeseeesnsseesasseesesseesesseeessseeeasreeennseeennnes 320 2,280
Net gain on financial assets and financial liabilities classified as held for trading .........cccceeeveeviieiicie e 155 363
Net gain on fair value hedge of INtErest rate SWaP .....ccccvverieeie ittt e ae e e eseesaeesreesnneens 336 -
Net gain (loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss ... 3,158 (1,519)
Realized gain on financial assets available-for-sale ............cceeueeiiiiieneececeeee e s - 5,291
Net foreign eXchange SaiN (10SS) ...ccueicuiiiiiiieiiieieece ettt ere ettt et e e e e et e e steeebeesteesaseebe e beessseesseenseeseeseasseesnseans 122 (1,253)
Net fINANCIAL INCOME ....ccieeeeieeeiccceeeee e e e e e rere s e s e se s e se s e sesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesssnansnnns 4,091 5,162
Net gain on fair value hedge of interest rate swap
Fair value change of interest rate swaps designated as hedging iNStruments ..........cccceeveervieriecceeceesee e (400) -
Fair value change on bonds issued by the Group attributable to interest rate risk .........cccceeervrveiinininiincnennn. 736 -
Net gain on fair value hedge of INterest rate SWaP .......ccccvveerriiiiiiirneneiiiiisissnneneissesssnesssssesssnsesssssssssnnsssssssssns 336 -
Net gain (loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
Equity instruments designated at fair VAIUE .......cccueiiieiiece ettt e 2,971 (1,472)
Interest rate instruments designated at fair VAlUE ........c.oouiiiiiniiniicie e 187 (47)
Net gain (loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss ......... 3,158 (1,519)

9. Net insurance income
Earned premiums, net of reinsurers' share
Premiums WHEEEN c.viiiiiiiiiiicicc e s a e s s b e e b e e sb s s b s r e b e b s 10,407 2,926
Premiums written, reinsurers' shares (428) (196)
Change in provision for UNarNed PremMIUMS .....cccueiiiiriiiinineee ettt sttt sbe st s saenneene (810) 330
Change in provision for unearned premiums, reinSUrers' SNAre ........ccccvevveeceeceeriese e 1 1
Earned premiums, net of reiNSUrers' Share ........ccccccvciiieeeiiiiiiiinnniiinneresressssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnns 9,169 3,061
Claims incurred, net of reinsurers' share
ClAIMS PRI .ttt ettt et bttt b bbbt e b e bbbt et na e bRt b e bbb b (6,115) (1,762)
Claims Paid, FEINSUIEIS' SNAIE .....iiiiieiciee ettt e e e st e st e e sbe e e sbe e e s baeesssseeesteeeanteeeanseeennneesssneesans 142 66
Change in Provision fOr CIAIMS ........co ittt ettt b e bt et (1,057) 33
Changes in provision for claims, reiNSUIErs' SNAIE ........ccccverieeiieeie et ae e ae e ae e aeeneas (46) (3)
Claims incurred, net of reiNSUrers' SNAre ..........cciveeieeeeeieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeseeeeesesesesesesesesesesesssasesssasasssssanans (7,076) (1,666)
NET INSUFANCE INCOME .....ceieeeeeeiieereeeennieeeretennnsseseeeeeensssseeeseensssssssessessnssssssssessnssssssssessnnnssssssessssnssssssessssnnnnnnns 2,093 1,395
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10. Other operating income 2017 2016
Fair value changes on iNVESTMENT PrOPEITY ...cccvirieriiriieereeseeeteete et e st e sae e teeae e aeesreesraessbeebeesseessaesseeenseeseansens 1,036 290
Realized gain 0N iNVESTMENT PrOPEITY .....ciicuiiiiiiieeieee et e ettt e st e st eeeeteeeebeeesaeeessbeeesssaeesssaeessseessseesasseesnnsen 15 400
Net gain on non-current assets held fOr SAIE ..o et s eenne s 958 1,107
Other iNCOME ......vvveeeeeeciriieeeeecreeeee s 918 1,406
Other operating income 2,927 3,203
Net gain on non-current assets held for sale
Income from real estates and other assets 1,184 1,335
Expense related to real estates and OThEr @SSETS .........ciiriiiiieriireeiee ettt sttt s (226) (228)
Net gain on non-current assets held for Sale ..ot ssssee s 958 1,107

Net gain on non-current assets held for sale are classified as other operating income in the Consolidated Financial Statements 2017. In
prior years it was classified as discontinued operations, net of tax. Comparative figures have been changed accordingly, see Note 1.

11. Personnel and salaries

2017 2016
Number of employees
Average number of full-time equivalent positions during the year ...........ccccoevieiiiiininiinincnncceee 1,250 1,201
Full-time equivalent positions at the end Of the YA ......cceievieiieciececeee et 1,284 1,239
Number of employees at Arion Bank
Average number of full-time equivalent positions during the Year ...........cocveieviinienie et 830 889
Full-time equivalent positions at the end Of tNE YA ......ccueeeiieiieceecece e et 844 869
Salaries and related expense
SAIATIES ettt b bbb b e R e bRt b e at b bt e ae e bbb b eae 13,771 13,274
Defined contribution PENSION PIANS ........iciieiicieccee et s e s e e e et e e teessaesaseeaseeseesseessnesnseeseenes 1,963 1,885
SAlArY-Telated EXPENSE .....eouiiiiiiieiietet ettt b ettt b bbbttt b e b et naenre s 1,802 1,884
Capitalization of salaries, due to internally developed SOftWaAre .........c.cccueeeeeriieiice e (347) (384)
Salaries and related EXPENSE .....cccccvuriiiiiiiiiinniiiiiiiiieeriiiiissssrersiesssssssessssssssssnssessssssssssnssssssssssansassssssssssnanssess 17,189 16,659
Salaries and related expense for Arion Bank
SAIATIES ettt b bbb b e R e bRt b e at b bt e ae e bbb b eae 9,123 9,690
Defined contribution PENSION PIANS ......eiiiiiieciie et s e e e te e e sateeesaeeeesaneeessseeesnseeesseeennnns 1,300 1,376
SAlArY-TEIATE BXPENSE ..cuveeiiieiiieteeie ettt ettt st ettt e st e st e e be et e e st e e s steesteesteenseesaaesasesnbeenbeesaeessbeenbeenbeeseenneas 1,346 1,553
Salaries and related EXPENSE .......ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiisesesssesesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssasanannnnnns 11,769 12,619

In 2017 the Group made a provision of ISK 311 million (2016: ISK 395 million) for performance plan payments, including salary-related
expense, of which the Bank made a provision of ISK 223 million (2016: ISK 331 million). Forty percent of the payment is deferred for
three years in accordance with FME rules on remuneration policy for Financial Undertakings. At the end of the year the Group's accrual
for performance plan payments amounted to ISK 942 million (31.12.2016: ISK 1,453 million), of which the Bank's accrual amounts to

ISK 762 million (31.12.2016: ISK 1,177 million).
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11. Personnel and salaries, continued

2017 2016
Fixed Additional Fixed Additional
Compensation of the Board of Directors remuner- remuner- remuner- remuner-
ation* ation** Total ation* ation** Total
Eva Cederbalk, Chairman of the Board from 23.6.2017 .......... 10.4 0.2 10.6 - - -
Brynjélfur Bjarnason, Vice Chairman of the Board .. . 5.2 4.6 9.8 4.7 3.8 8.5
Jakob Mar Asmundsson, Director from 9.3.2017 ......cococveuunn.. 4.2 1.2 5.4 - - -
Kirstin Th. Flygenring, Director ........ccccecevinirienienenenicnieniene 5.0 4.0 9.0 4.7 33 8.1
Mans HOglund, DIr€CtOr .....veeveereieceieete e 10.0 4.6 14.6 9.5 4.4 13.8
Steinunn K. Thérdardéttir, Director from 30.11.2017 ... 0.4 - 0.4 - - -
Thoéra Hallgrimsdottir, DIrector ......cceveeeeeeeeeceeseeseesee s 5.0 4.4 9.4 4.7 3.8 8.5
Monica Caneman, Chairman of the Board until 10.5.2017 ...... 7.3 0.9 8.2 19.0 2.5 21.4
Gudrun Johnsen, Director until 29.11.2017 ......ccovveevvveeeveeennnes 7.2 4.2 114 7.1 4.4 115
Benedikt Olgeirsson, Director until 9.3.2017 . 1.0 1.2 2.2 4.7 3.3 8.1
Alternate directors of the Board ........c.ccoceeceevenenienienenceeenne. 3.0 - 3.0 24 - 24
Total remuneration ........cccceeeiiiiiisseniiinnisssneenenssnsneenssesen 58.7 25.3 84.0 56.9 254 82.3
John P. Madden, a member of the Board of Directors received no remunerations in 2017 (2016: nil).
2017 2016
Performance- Performance-
Compensation of key management personnel based based
Salaries payments Salaries  payments
Hoskuldur H. Olafsson, CEO 62.0 9.2 58.2 7.1
Nine managing directors of the Bank's divisions who are

members of the Bank's Executive COMMITLEE ......c.evcveecveeveeriecieeie e 295.6 34.2 262.7 30.3

Performance based payments in 2017 are based on the Group's performance in 2016.

Board Members receive remuneration for their involvement in board committees. In addition to 16 Board meetings (2016: 13) during
the year 16 Board Credit Committee meetings (2016: 10), 8 Board Audit Committee (2016: 8), 10 Board Risk Committee meetings
(2016: 11) and 5 Board Remuneration Committee meetings (2016: 7) were held. Four committee meetings with alternate directors of
the Board were held in 2017 (2016: 4).

The 2017 Annual General Meeting of the Bank held on 9 March 2017 approved the monthly salaries for 2017 for the Chairman, Vice
Chairman and for other Board Members of amounts ISK 849,647, ISK 637,447 and ISK 425,000 (2016: ISK 796,950; 597,700; 398,500)
respectively. It was also approved that the salary of Alternate Board Members would be I1SK 215,273 (2016: ISK 201,850) per meeting,
up to a maximum of ISK 425,000 (2016: ISK 398,500) per month. For Board Members resident abroad, the aforementioned amounts
are doubled. In addition, it was approved to pay Board Members who serve on board committees of the Bank a maximum of ISK
170,000 (2016: ISK 159,400) per month for each committee they serve on and the Chairman of the board committees ISK 220,765
(2016: 1SK 207,000).

* Fixed remuneration represents Board Member compensation for their attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors.

** Additional remuneration represents Board Member compensation for their participation in Board Committees.

Arion Bank Consolidated Financial Statements 2017 28 Amounts are in ISK millions




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. Other operating expense 2017 2016
AdMINISTrAtION EXPENSE ..veeuviiieeeeeieeiieiteeseesee et et esteeseeessaeeseeseesseesseessseaseesseessesssseasseesseesssesseeessessseessessseesssessens 12,388 11,186
Depositors' and INVestors' GUArantee FUNG .........cccuieviiiuieiiiieie ettt e eete e et esareebeeteestsessaesaseeseenreessaenans (1,829) 804
Depreciation of property and equipment 816 865
AMOrtization Of INTANGIDIE @SSEES ......iiiiiiiciie e e et e e e e s e e sabe e e sbaeestaeeesaeessaeesanseesnnnes 1,316 977
(@14 o 1Ty (e 1T Y PSS SSPN 81 49
Other OPErating EXPENSE ....eciiiiiiiircriiiiiiisrsstetteiisisssssesesssssssssssssssssssssesssessssssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssssssssssssnnsasssssss 12,772 13,881

The Bank had recognized a liability of ISK 2,669 million against the Depositors' and Investors' Guarantee Fund. At the end of June 2017
the Bank received confirmation from the Fund stating that the claim would not be collected, see Note 35.

Auditor's fee 2017 2016
Audit and review of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the relevant fiscal year ........c.ccoceecvevevininienenne. 185 140
Other audit related services for the relevant fiSCal YEar ........ccuevveriieiecieceecee e 45 11
0T 1 3 =T 230 151
Of which fee to others than the auditor of the Parent company ........ccccecveviiiiinininiee 4 12

13. Bank levy

The Bank levy is 0.376% on total debt excluding tax liabilities, in excess of ISK 50 billion. The tax is assessed on Financial Undertakings
but non-financial subsidiaries are exempt from this tax.

14. Net impairment 2017 2016
Net change in impairment of |0aNs t0 COMPOTALES .......cvcviiiieeiii e erieesee ettt e e e e e e ste et e e sae e e nteeteeneesanesaeenns (3,197) (2,914)
Net change in impairment of 10ans to INAIVIAUAIS .........coceiiiiiiiiiiii e 168 (2,248)
Net change in collective impairment on loans ... 1,362 427
PrOViSION fOF [OSSES ....uuuuuereirrersrsreressrnsnssesessssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssssssnsssssnsnsnsssnsnanannnananananns (1,667) (4,735)
OTNEI IMPAIMMENT «.eiieitieitierteete ettt et et et e stt e st e e beesbeesttesstesateeseenseesatesasesnseesbeesaeesabeesbeenbeenseenssesnsesnseans (3) (9)
Increase in book value of loans to corporates 364 2,990
Increase in book value of 10ans t0 INIVIAUALS ........cc.ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 1,492 8,990
NEt IMPAITMENT ...eiiiiiiiciiicrcrrrirerrrrrrrrsrsssssssssssss s s s s s sssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsnne 186 7,236
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15. Income tax expense

2017 2016
CUITENT TAX EXPEINSE «.uvvviiieeiiiiiiteeeesiittteeeeesaattteesesabateeesssssbaaeaesssssstaseesessssaaaeessasassseeessansssssaeessssssssseesssnsssssesesnnnnss 6,132 6,784
DEFEITEA TAX EXPENSE ...veeuvieeieeeeeteeieesteestteeteeteesteesteeasteesseesseasseesseeasseesseesseessseasseesteesseessseaseeassesnseenseesssesseensensaes (326) (153)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE ..ceeeeuriiiiiiienneiiiiiiirtesesieitiireessssismtmemsssssssmsmmeessssssssteresssssssssssresssssssssssesnssssssssssssnssssssssssenne 5,806 6,631
Reconciliation of effective tax rate 2017 2016
EQrnings DEfOre 1aX ...uviiiiiieciie ettt et ra e e aa e eaaen 20,431 28,370
Income tax using the Icelandic corporate taxX rate .......ccoccvevvieeevieeeiiee e 20.0% 4,086 20.0% 5,674
Additional 6% tax on Financial Undertakings ..........ccceceeveenieniieniienieeneesie e 6.5% 1,319 4.9% 1,395
[\ oY g Re 1=Yo [N o] o] LB =D o =T 1Y =TI 0.4% 86 0.0% 13
TaX EXEMPL FEVENUE ..ooniiiiieiiiieeiiee ettt ettt e et e st e e sbee s e beeesabeeesabneesabneeeneneas (1.6%) (333) (4.4%) (1,247)
NON-AEAUCEIDIE TAXES ..eeuveeeeieiieeeeeeee e e 3.1% 634 2.0% 574
Tax incentives not recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income .................. 0.6% 118 0.0% -
OtNEI CNANEES ..eneeeieceeeeee ettt e s e st e et e e e s reessseesbeesseeseeesnaeensennes (0.5%) (104) 0.8% 222
|23 {=Yo1 1= ) Q- | £ SRS 28.4% 5,806 23.4% 6,631
Financial undertakings pay 6% additional tax on taxable profit exceeding ISK 1 billion.
Tax exempt revenues consist mainly of profit from equity positions.

16. Discontinued operations, net of tax 2017 2016
Loss on disposal 8roups Neld fOr SAIE .......coiuiiiiiiiiiiieieee ettt e s be s te et e e sseesaaesaneens (254) -
Income tax expense 48 -
Discontinued operations, NETt Of TAX ....cccccvceeiiiiiiiirseeeiiiiciiineeeeesissssneeesssessssnssenssessssssnesssssssssansasssssssssnnassssssssns (206) -

Net gain on non-current assets held for sale are classified as other operating income in the Consolidated Financial Statements 2017. In
prior years they were classified as discontinued operations, net of tax. Comparative figures have been changed accordingly, see Note 1.

17. Earnings per share Continued and
Continued Discontinued discontinued
operations operations operations
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Net earnings attributable to the shareholders of Arion Bank .. 14,606 21,147 (206) - 14,400 21,147
Weighted average number of outstanding shares

for the year, million .........cccooieiiiinineeee e 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Basic earnings per share .........cccvceeeieiiiiinneneniinninnnenninnnsnneen 7.30 10.57 (0.10) - 7.20 10.57

There were no instruments at the end of the year that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share (2016: none).
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Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
18. Cash and balances with Central Bank

CASH ON NANG ...ttt h e sttt e bt e s he e sat e s a bt e be e sb e e eh b e e abe e be e bt e aee et e e bt e beesheenabeeabeennen
CaSh With CeNTIAl BANK ......oeueiiiiiiieie ettt ettt et et e bt e s ae e sat e st e e be e sbeesat e e st e esbeeabeesaeeabesuteeseenseenaes
Mandatory reserve deposit With CeNtral BanK ..........cccvecuiiiiiiieeiiecieeseesee s eeese e e saeesae et e saeessaeesteeseesseesseenes

Cash and balances With Central BankK ..........ccciiiiiiieeeiiiiiiininneiiiiiiinmeeneisiimmmmensismmsssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssns

The mandatory reserve deposit with the Central Bank is not available for the Group to use in its daily operations.

19. Loans to credit institutions

20 ool 1U 1 £ PRURRUPRPRS
LAY/ Lo o TNV 0 4 =T = A (o T LRSS
(@4 01T To -1 RO SPRRPSPRPRPRE

Loans to credit institutions

2017 2016

9,954 7,448

120,641 70,854

9,224 9,332

139,819 87,634

51,303 45,631
32,309 32,267
2,997 2,218

86,609 80,116

20. Loans to customers Individuals Corporates Total
Gross Gross Gross

carrying Book carrying Book carrying Book
2017 amount value amount value amount value
OVEIArafs ..oc.eeieieieeeeie e 14,469 13,438 18,778 17,504 33,247 30,942
Credit cards 11,133 10,931 1,123 1,109 12,256 12,040
MOrtEage 10@NS .....ouiiiiiiieiieeee e 311,507 310,318 19,632 19,417 331,139 329,735
Other 10aNs ......cc.oviiieiiieniieeeee e 33,629 30,600 368,312 361,784 401,941 392,384

Loans to customers 370,738 365,287 407,845 399,814

778,583 765,101

2016

OVErArafts coviiieeierieeeeeeree et 14,805 13,381 19,314 17,630
Credit Cards ..ooeovereeeeiee e 11,363 11,099 1,180 1,151
MOItgage l0ANS ...veeiiiiieiiecieetete e 285,784 282,996 16,298 15,975
Other 10ANS ......oviriiiieieeseee et s 34,777 29,940 351,739 340,250

34,119 31,011
12,543 12,250
302,082 298,971
386,516 370,190

Loans to customers 346,729 337,416 388,531 375,006

735,260 712,422

The total book value of pledged loans that were pledged against amounts borrowed was ISK 183 billion at the end of the year

(31.12.2016: ISK 165 billion). Pledged loans comprised mortgage loans to individuals.

Further analysis of loans is provided in Risk Management Disclosures.
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20. Loans to customers, continued

Changes in the provision for losses on loans to customers

2017 Specific  Collective Total
Balance at the beginning of the YEAr ......cc.vvi i 18,281 4,557 22,838
PrOVISION fOF IOSSES ..uviiiitieieitieeectteeceteeceteeeete e e et e e et e e e beeeebaeeeebaeeeasseeesseeeesseeeesseeessbeeessbesesareeeenseeas 3,029 (1,362) 1,667
Write-offs ....cccccveeveeecieceeeieene, (8,723) - (8,723)
Effects due to acquisition of SUDSIIAry™ .........c.coceiiieiiiiiiceeeeses e e (2,421) - (2,421)
EXChange differenCe ....oc.eiiiiiiiicicec e e 3 - 3
Payment of loans previously WHtEeN Off ..........cccieiieiie i 118 - 118
Balance at the end of the year 10,287 3,195 13,482
2016

Balance at the beginning Of the YEAI .......ccvieiieie et aeas 25,341 4,984 30,325
PrOVISION FOI JOSSES ....uvvieiiiiiieiiiiiee ettt e et e e e eetae e e e e e e ebbae e e e e e eeabbaeeeeeesabaseeeseenssreeeeeennees 5,162 (427) 4,735
WWEIEE-OFFS .ttt ettt h et et e s bt et e b e s bt s bt e st et e s b e sb e e e e benaeene (11,283) - (11,283)
EXChaNGe dIffEr@NCE oottt ettt st bbb e nas (1,138) - (1,138)
Payment of loans previously written off 199 - 199
Balance at the end of the year 18,281 4,557 22,838

*At the end of September 2017 Arion Bank became majority owner of United Silicon, see Note 28. Arion Bank had made provision for losses on loans to United Silicon

which was eliminated on Group level when United Silicon became a subsidiary of Arion Bank.

21. Financial instruments

Bonds and debt INSTFUMENTS ...c..iiuiiiiiiiiteet ettt ettt b et b e b bt e snennes
Shares and equity instruments with variable income .

DEIIVALIVES vttt e bbb s a e b s e ba e saa e sreea
Securities used for eCONOMIC NEAGING ......ccvieii et e e s e et e et e e s e e sateeseeseesreesaseenseenseenes

FINANCIal INSETUMENTS ...ceeiiiiiiiiieniiiiiiiiinieniiiiisiennenssssssssresssssssssnsssssssssssnssesssessssssnsesssssssssnsasssssssssssnssssssssssnns
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2017 2016
51,755 69,565
36,190 27,035
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22. Financial assets and financial liabilities

Designated

2017 Amortized at fair
Loans cost Trading value Total
Cash and balances with Central Bank ...........coocvvueeeeeiieiiiieeeeieiireeeeeeecirreeeeeeesnnreeeeeeennnns 139,819 - - 139,819
LoaNs tO Credit INSTILULIONS ...cvvviecieeecrie ettt et eeare e e eareeenreeennes 86,609 - - 86,609
765,101 - - 765,101
991,529 - - 991,529

2,452 46,638 49,090

- 23 2,642 2,665
- 2,475 49,280 51,755
- 1,677 5,380 7,057
- 1,303 10,397 11,700
Bond funds with variable income, unlisted* ... - 1,782 15,651 17,433
Shares and equity instruments with variable income ............. - 4,762 31,428 36,190
Derivatives
OTC AEIVATIVES ..veeeiiieeeieeeciieeciteeette e e ctte e etreeeetreesetreeeetveeeeabeeesabeeessteeeanseeessasasnseesnsseenn - 7,544 - 7,544
Derivatives used for hedge acCoUNTING .........cocvevierieeiiecceeree e - 80 - 80
[T T 1T PPN - 7,624 - 7,624
Securities used for economic hedging
Bonds and debt instruments, liSted .........cccovieiiiiininiciiiic - 6,024 - 6,024
Shares and equity instruments with variable income, listed ........ccccocvevviviniieeriieereenn, - 7,846 - 7,846
Shares and equity instruments with variable income, unlisted ..........ccccceveverieriennennnns - 11 - 11
Securities used for economic hedging .......ccccceeecereereiiiiiiirneennieccnnnneeeeescsseneeesssesenens - 13,881 - 13,881
Other fINANCIAT @SSELS ...c.uviiieeee ettt e et e e e e eate e e e be e e sbee e ebeeeereeas 8,948 - - 8,948
FINANCIal @SSELS ..ccvvueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitintc e e 1,000,477 28,742 80,708 1,109,927
Liabilities at amortized cost
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank ...........ccccveeeeiiiiiiieeee e e eenneeens 7,370 - - 7,370
DIBPOSIES ...ttt bbbt b e bbb bt st renne s 462,161 - - 462,161
Borrowings .. 384,998 - - 384,998
Liabilities at amortized cost ........c.cceevvvuerriieciiinecriiinecnineenn. 854,529 - - 854,529
Financial liabilities at fair value
Short POSILION IN DONTS ...ocuviiiiiiieiie ettt st eebeesbeesaee s - 1,467 - 1,467
Short POSItION IN EQUILY .eeeveveeeiiiieciie ettt e et e st e e st e e s naeesnaeeenaeeeans - 67 - 67
DEIIVATIVES .ottt ————————————————————— - 1,722 - 1,722
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNTING ......c.veeiiiieeiiieeie e - 345 - 345
Financial liabilities at fair value - 3,601 - 3,601
Other fiNnanCial lIADIlITIES ......eciiiiiiiiiiicceeee e ar e e e eeaaes 34,705 - - 34,705
Financial liabilities 889,234 3,601 - 892,835

*Including share certificates in funds with underlying high rated bonds, as part of the Bank's liquidity.
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22. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

Designated
2016 Amortized at fair
Loans cost Trading value Total
Cash and balances wWith Central Bank .........ccceeoveeieieeiciieeccieeccreeecree et 87,634 - - 87,634
Loans t0 Credit INSTITULIONS ..vv.iiiiiiirieie ettt e e eeatbae e e e e esaraaeeeeens 80,116 - - 80,116
712,422 - - 712,422
880,172 - - 880,172
- 5,284 61,055 66,339
- 102 3,124 3,226
- 5,386 64,179 69,565
- 2,949 9,125 12,074
- 1,348 10,579 11,927
Bond funds with variable income, unlisted™ ...........ccceeeviiiiiiiiiiiiceee e - 1,027 2,007 3,034
Shares and equity instruments with variable income ............. - 5,324 21,711 27,035
Derivatives
(O O e [T S 17 | V7= RPN - 5,159 - 5,159
LT T 1T PPN - 5,159 - 5,159
Securities used for economic hedging
Bonds and debt instruments, listed .........cccoeveeieiininiiiine, . - 7,318 - 7,318
Shares and equity instruments with variable income, listed ........ccccccvevviviniieenieeeneen, - 8,365 - 8,365
Shares and equity instruments with variable income, unlisted ...........ccocevveriieiiinnennnns - 14 - 14
Securities used for economic hedging .......ccccceeecereeeiiiiiiiirsneennieccnnnreeeeescsseneeesssessnens - 15,697 - 15,697
Other fINANCIAT @SSES ...cvviiieiee ettt e et e e e eare e e ebe e e sbe e e sbeeeeneeas 8,617 - - 8,617
FINANCIal @SSELS ..ccvvuueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieinnc et 888,789 31,566 85,890 1,006,245
Liabilities at amortized cost
Due to credit institutions and Central Bank ...........ccccveeeeiieciiieeee e e eenneeens 7,987 - - 7,987
DEPOSIES weveeeireeeirieeieeeee e 412,064 - - 412,064
Borrowings 339,476 - - 339,476
Liabilities at amortized cost ........c.cccevvvueriiieeiiinecrisineenineenn. 759,527 - - 759,527
Financial liabilities at fair value
ShOrt POSILION IN DONTS ...ocuviiiiiiieiie ettt sar e beesbeesanens - 1,884 - 1,884
DEIIVATIVES e ———————————————————— - 1,842 - 1,842
Financial liabilities at fair value - 3,726 - 3,726
Other finanCial lIADIlIHIES ......eiiiiiiiiiieiceeee et e b e e e eeaaes 36,350 - - 36,350
Financial liabilities 795,877 3,726 - 799,603

*Including share certificates in funds with underlying high rated bonds, as part of the Bank's liquidity.
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22. Financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

Bonds and debt instruments designated at fair value, specified by issuer 2017 2016
FIiNancial and INSUIFANCE @CHIVITIES ....ceeiiuuriieeiieiieiee ettt ettt e e e esb e e e e eeaaeeeeeeeeabaaeeeeesebbaseeeeeesssraseeesennrreeeeeans 4,415 5,564
PUDIIC SECEON ottt e ettt e e et e e e eab e e e etbe e e sabeeeeabeeeaabeeeeaseeeessseesabseesabeeesnbeaesnseeeeseeesneeesasseesnnes 38,389 51,860
Corporates 6,476 6,755
Bonds and debt instruments designated at fair VAlUe ........ccccceeiiiiiiinineiiiinininnniensinncnseessssssssnsesssssssssssssssns 49,280 64,179

The total amount of pledged bonds was ISK 13.4 billion at the end of the year (31.12.2016: ISK 15.6 billion). Pledged bonds comprised
Icelandic and foreign Government Bonds that were pledged against funding received and included in Due to credit institutions and
Central Bank as well as short positions included in Financial liabilities at fair value.

23. Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of assets and liabilities by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: valuation techniques for which all significant inputs are market observable, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3: valuation techniques which include significant inputs that are not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

2017

Assets at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bonds and debt iNStruMENts .......cocoviiiriiiiiiie s 32,452 19,264 39 51,755
Shares and equity instruments with variable iINCOME ........ccceoveeviieeiiiiee e 4,140 30,920 1,130 36,190
DEIIVALIVES ..ottt e - 7,544 - 7,544
Derivatives used for hedge acCoUNTING .......cccveriieiieciecie e - 80 - 80
Securities used for economMic hedgING .......cccevviriiriiiiiiiieie e 13,713 168 - 13,881
INVESTMENT PrOPEITY ..eeeeieiiei it e e e s e e e e s s s abbaeeeeessanreees - - 6,613 6,613
P 3 1 - 1T - 1 TR 50,305 57,976 7,782 116,063

Liabilities at fair value

Short Position IN BONAS .....ccvieiiie e seaee s 1,467 - - 1,467
ShOrt POSITION 1N BQUILY .everereeieeiieiierie ettt e e st e sbeesbeesaeesabeenbeenaeensnens 67 - - 67
Derivatives .....ccccccceei - 1,722 - 1,722
Derivatives used for hedge aCCOUNTING ...cccvevviriiiiieerierie et - 345 - 345

Liabilities at fair VAlUE ....ccceuueieeiiieeeeiiiiiteeeecceeeteeeeneeeeereeennnsseseserensnssesssersnnnnsensseseens 1,534 2,067 - 3,601
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23. Fair value hierarchy, continued

2016

Assets at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bonds and debt INSTIUMENTS .....cciiiiiiiiiiee ettt eeerrr e e e e eebare e e e e e enbraeeee s 22,787 46,689 89 69,565
Shares and equity instruments with variable iNCOME ........ccccvveveerienieciececscceeie e 11,863 15,154 18 27,035
DEIIVALIVES oot ————————————————————— - 5,159 - 5,159
Securities used for economic hedging . 15,659 38 - 15,697
INVESTMENT PrOPEILY ..ouviiiiiiiiiiiiii e - - 5,358 5,358
ASSELS At FAIF VAIUE ....uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecrercrrssrrscsssssss s s s s sssssssssssssssssssssssnsssnsnnnnn 50,309 67,040 5,465 122,814
Liabilities at fair value

Short POSItIoN IN DONAS ...coviiiieie e s s es 1,884 - - 1,884
DEIIVATIVES i —————————————————————————————————— - 1,842 - 1,842
Liabilities at fair ValUe ......ccceeeeieieieieieiccccccccccccecscecesseses e sesesese s esesssesesss s s s s s sesssssssssenenanen 1,884 1,842 - 3,726

There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year (2016: No transfers).

Fair value of assets and liabilities

The fair value of asset and liabilities is the amount at which the asset and liability could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, i.e. not during a forced sale or liquidation. The existence of published price quotations in an active market is the best
evidence of fair value and when they exist they are used by the Group to measure assets and liabilities. If quoted prices for an asset fail
to represent actual and regularly occurring transactions in active market transactions or if quoted prices are not available at all, fair
value is established by using an appropriate valuation technique.

Methods for establishing fair value

The best evidence of the fair value of an asset and liability at initial recognition is the transaction price, unless the fair value can be
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions, or is based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable markets.

In some cases, the carrying value of an asset in Note 22 is used as an approximation for the fair value of the asset. This is straight
forward for cash and cash equivalents but is also used for short term investments and borrowings to highly rated counterparties, such
as credit institutions, on contracts that feature interest close to or equal to market rates and expose the Group to little or no credit risk.

Level 1: Fair value established from quoted market prices

For listed and liquid stocks and bonds, certain financial derivatives and other market traded securities, the fair value is derived directly
from quoted market prices. These instruments are disclosed under Financial instruments and Financial liabilities at fair value in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Level 2: Fair value established using valuation techniques with observable market information

For assets and liabilities, for which the market is not active, the Group applies valuation techniques to attain a fair value using as much
market information as available. Valuation techniques include using recent market transactions between knowledgeable and willing
parties, if available, reference to current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models or other commonly accepted valuation techniques used by market participants to price the instrument.

For assets and liabilities for which quoted prices on active markets are not available, the fair value is derived using various valuation
techniques. This applies in particular to OTC derivatives such as options, swaps, futures and unlisted equities but also some other assets
and liabilities.

In most cases the valuation is based on theoretical financial models, such as the Black Scholes model or variations thereof. These
techniques also include forward pricing and swap models using present value calculations.

Level 2 instruments include unlisted shares, unlisted funds with underlying bonds and equity holdings (share certificates), unlisted and
less liquid listed bonds and all OTC derivatives.
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23. Fair value hierarchy, continued

Level 3: Fair value established using valuation techniques with significant unobservable market information

In many cases there is little or no market data to rely on for fair value calculations. The most common valuation technique is present
value calculations. Such calculations involve the estimation of future cash flow and the assessment of appropriate discount rate. The
discount rate should both reflect current market rates and the uncertainty in the future cash flow. In such cases internal models and
methods are used to calculate the fair value. The models may be statistical in nature, based on internal or external history of assets
with similar characteristics and/or based on internal knowledge and experience. For example, the credit margin on most loans to
customers which, is added to the current and suitable interest rate to arrive at an appropriate discount rate, is estimated using credit
rating and loss parameters in case of default that have been derived from internal models.

Equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price are evaluated using methods and guidelines from pertinent international
organizations. In most cases intrinsic value is the basis for the assessment but other factors, such as cash flow analysis, can also modify
the results.

The Group applies management valuation for determining fair value of investment properties. Management valuation is either based
on recent transactions and offers for similar assets or present value calculations which involve estimation of future cash flow and the
assessment of appropriate discount rate.

Movements in Level 3 assets measured at fair value

Investment Financial assets

2017 property  Bonds Shares Total
Balance at the beginning of the Year .........cccveeveecee e 5,358 89 18 5,465
Net fair Value ChanGES .....ccvi ittt s s 1,036 (617) 23 442
Net gain from diSPOSAIS .....c.eecvieiiciieriece et e e e e e re e r e e e e nnes 15 - - 15
AAAITIONS .ottt st 767 - 234 1,001
DISPOSAI 11ttt e bbbttt e a et he et bbb b bt enes (563) (147) (15) (725)
Transfers into Level 3* - 714 870 1,584
Balance at the end of the year .......cccccecvveeeiiiiicicneeeeeecccnnnne . 6,613 39 1,130 7,782
2016

Balance at the beginning of the Year ........cccccveieceecee e 7,542 182 5,874 13,598
Net fair Value ChanGES .....ccviiiiiiieiecieeeeeee ettt st s s 290 (7) 2,835 3,118
Net gain from diSPOSAl ...cccueeiieiieeieeece e neas 400 - - 400
Additions .... 618 - - 618
DISPOSAI 1.ttt e bbbttt et e bt et bbb b bt enes (2,084) (73) (8,705) (10,862)
Disposals through the sale of @ SUbSIAIary .......cccevieriieiiinieee e (1,408) - - (1,408)
Transfers iNt0 LEVEI 3 ... ..ottt - - 13 13
Transfers OUL OF LEVEI 3 ......uveiieieecciec ettt ertre e e ae e e are e e eabe e e ebaeesraeenas - (13) - (13)
Balance at the end of the year ........cueeeeeeeeeeeerereeeeeeeeeeeennnes 5,358 89 18 5,465

*In a routine review of the portfolio the Bank reclassified a number of unlisted shares and bonds from Level 2 to Level 3. Presumptions for classification to Level 2
were no longer considered available.
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23. Fair value hierarchy, continued

Line items where effects of Level 3 assets are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Investment Financial assets

2017 property Bonds Shares Total
Net interest income ... - 27 - 27
Net fiNAaNCIal INCOME ..viiiiiiece e e e e e e be e s re e sneeesaeeneas - (645) 23 (622)
Other OPerating INCOMIE ....ccuiiiiiiie et rtee et e et e e et e e sbr e e s bt e e e saaeesssseeeseeeeanseeas 1,051 - - 1,051
Effects recognized in the Income Statement ........ccccccveriiiiiicnnneneiiiiisnneeesescsssneessenens 1,051 (618) 23 456
Net loss on AFS financial assets, Net of taX ......cccvvvecrinernincee e - - - -
Effects recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income .........cccccceeeriiciisnnnns 1,051 (618) 23 456
2016

Net INTErest INCOME ....ciiiiiiiiee e e s - 2 - 2
Net fiINAaNCIal INCOME ..ot st st s - (9) 5,259 5,250
Other OpPerating INCOMIE ...covuiiiiiiee ettt rree et s e s e e s e e e s sbaeesssteeenneeeennneees 690 - - 690
Effects recognized in the Income Statement .........ccccceeiiiiiiinenniiiininnnnnneinnnnsseenen. 690 (7) 5,259 5,942
Net loss on AFS financial assets, net of taX ..........ccceeevveeecveennns - - (2,903) (2,903)

Effects recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income .........cccccceverercicrnnnns 690 (7) 2,356 3,039

Carrying values and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities not carried at fair value

2017 Carrying Fair Unrealized
Financial assets not carried at fair value value value  gain (loss)
Cash and balances with Central Bank 139,819 139,819 -
e T [0 I o Mol =Yo [1 T o L {14V 4 o) o RS 86,609 86,609 -
LO@NS T0 CUSTOMEIS ..ttt e s s e e e e s e sbbbbe e e s e s abbaeeeseeanns 765,101 772,185 7,084
Other fINANCIAI @SSEES .uvviiiiiiiiietie ettt ettt ettt e ettt e e bt e e e etae e e eabeeeeateeeeabeeeebeeeenseeeebeeesseeesbeeeseseeeans 8,948 8,948 -
Financial assets not carried at fair Value .........cccivviiineiiiiiiiinnnneiiiininnnsenessesssssssssnnes 1,000,477 1,007,561 7,084
Financial liabilities not carried at fair value

Due to credit institutions and Central Bank ..........cccccueieeiiiiiiiiiiee e e eeciree e e e ecnee e e e e eeaareeeeeseeanrees 7,370 7,370 -
Deposits 462,161 462,161 -
Borrowings 384,998 402,355 (17,357)
Other fINANCIAl IADIIITIES ..v.eeiieeieeeeii et eeee e e e esbaa e e e e e s sbbaeeeeeeesasbaeeeseesaes 34,705 34,705 -
Financial liabilities not carried at fair Value .........ccouveeieieiiiiieieieieieeeececerereee e e e sesesesesesesens 889,234 906,591 (17,357)
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23. Fair value hierarchy, continued

2016 Carrying Fair Unrealized
Financial assets not carried at fair value value value  gain (loss)
Cash and balances With Central Bank .........c..oocviiiirieieiiieccee ettt reeeeearee e 87,634 87,634 -
LOANS tO Credit INSTIEULIONS ..vvviiieiiiiiiiee ettt ee et e e e e stbr e e e e e e eareeeeeeeennasreeeeesesrreeeens 80,116 80,116 -
LOQNS 10 CUSTOMEBIS .ttt ettt e e e e e e e eeeeee e e e et e ee e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeaeaeeaaaaaeeeaaaeaaaeaaeaeaeaaeens 712,422 717,220 4,798
Other fINANCIAI @SSELS ....uvvviiiii ettt eeee e e e e et e e e e e eetb b e e e e eesaaraeeeeeessssaeeeeeeesraaeeeeennns 8,617 8,617 -
Financial assets Not carried at fair VAlUE ........ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiriirrsssssressssss s e sssesssssssesesssesssssnes 888,789 893,587 4,798

Financial liabilities not carried at fair value

Due to credit institutions and Central Bank .........ccccueeeiuieiiiiieiiieeeciee et e e svreeseaaeeeens 7,987 7,987 -
DBPOSITS .uvrveueeuterteete ettt ettt et s h e a et h e bbbt h e b e h bkt h e et e At eh e e Rt et e eheeheea b e beshe bt e st e nbeebeentenenteene 412,064 412,064 -
BOITOWINES ...eeiitteeeitee ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e e ettt e sa bt e e sabe e e s abe e e ebbeeesbeeeanteeenseesenbeeeenneeenaneeens 339,476 348,413 (8,937)
Other fiNaNCIal lADITIES ...ccuveeiereeeeree ettt et eere e et e e et e e sbe e e sebaeeseseeeesreeeenreeenns 36,350 36,350 -
Financial liabilities not carried at fair Value ........cccoeeeeieieiiieieiccecccccccccrerere e se e seseeeseeees 795,877 804,814 (8,937)

Loans to customers are largely with variable interest rate. Those loans, including corporate loans, are presented at book value as they
have generally short duration and very limited interest rate risk. Loans with fixed interest rate, mainly long term retail mortgages are
estimated by using the discount cash flow method with the interest rates offered on new loans, taking into account mortgaging.
Defaulted loans are presented at book value as no future cash flow is expected on them. Instead they are written down according to
their estimated potential recovery value.

The fair value for deposits with stated maturities is calculated by discounting estimated cash flows using current market rates for
similar maturities. For deposits that can be withdrawn immediately, the fair value is the amount payable on demand, which is equal to
the carrying amount in the Statement of Financial Position.

Derivatives Notional Fair value

2017 value Assets  Liabilities
Forward exchange rate @grEEMENTS ....ccccuieicieieriiee et see st e e e e e e e s sre e e sbe e e ssbeeesntaeessaeas 52,914 563 251
Fair value hedge of interest rate swap 99,613 80 345
Interest rate and exchange rate agreEMENTS .....ccciiieiiie it e e e et eesaeeennnes 199,723 6,265 1,392
BONG SWAP @BIEEMENTS ....veiiitieiieieteeit ettt sttt b ettt st sbe et e b sbesae s saesre e en 1,818 1 15
SHare SWaP QBIEEMENTS ..eiiiiieeiiiieiiee e ettt e et e et e et eesree e sabeeesbeeessteeestaeessaeeesteeesseeensseesnsneesssseeess 8,270 701 64
Options - pUrchased ABrEEMENLS .......cceiirieiiiiiiei ettt st sae s 1,219 14 -
DEIIVALIVES ceuuereiererenenneiererteennseeeeerrennasseeeeressasssssessessnssssssssesenssssssssessnsnssssssessesnssssssessssnnnssssssessnnnn 363,557 7,624 2,067
2016

FOrward eXChange rate agrEEMENTS ......cccviveirieriieiteeie ettt e stesteeeeeeeeseeessaesasesseesbeesasesssesssesnseenes 31,921 266 247
Interest rate and exchange rate agrEEMENTS .....ccc.viiciiie e e e e et eeseeeenanes 210,143 4,288 1,104
BOND SWAP GEIEEMENTS ..veevieriiiiiieeieesieesteeteesteesteeseestesbeesbeesteesssesseesseesseesssesnsessseessessssesssesnseesseenes 2,995 1 8
SHare SWaP QBIEEMENTS ..ecccuviieiiiieeiee e ettt e et e et e et e e sreeesbeeesabeeessteeesstaeeasaeeenseeasseesanseesnssesenssenens 8,138 597 457
Options - purchased agreements ... 1,218 7 26
[T T 1= PP 254,415 5,159 1,842

The Group applies fair value hedge accounting only with respect to certain foreign currency denominated interest rate swaps, whereby
the Group pays floating rate interest and receives fixed rate interest. The interest rate swaps are hedging the exposure of changes in
the fair value of certain fixed-rate foreign currency denominated bonds, see Note 31, arising from changes in interest rates. The Group
started to apply hedge accounting at the beginning of 2017.
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24. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar arrangements

Netting potential not
recognized in the balance

Assets subject to netting arrangements sheet
Gross assets Balance Assets not Total
before sheet Assets Assets after  subject to assets
balance nettings recognized consideration enforceable  recognized
sheet with gross on balance Financial Collateral of netting nettingarr-  on balance
2017 received potential angements sheet
Reverse repurchase agreements ....... 15,197 - 15,197 (82) - 15,115 - 15,197
Derivatives .......cccvvveeeeiiiciieeee e 6,350 - 6,350 (1,210) - 5,140 1,274 7,624
Total assets .....cccvvvnerrriiiisssnnnennnennns 21,547 - 21,547 (1,292) - 20,255 1,274 22,821
2016
Reverse repurchase agreements ....... 15,644 (80) 15,564 (1,884) - 13,680 - 15,564
Derivatives .......cccvvveeeeiiiciieeee e 4,100 - 4,100 (629) - 3,471 1,059 5,159
Total assets .....ccevvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininanas 19,744 (80) 19,664 (2,513) - 17,151 1,059 20,723
Financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar arrangements
Netting potential not
Liabilities subject to netting recognized in the balance
arrangements sheet
Gross Balance Liabilities Liabilities not Total
liabilities sheet Liabilities after  subject to liabilities
before nettings recognized consideration enforceable  recognized
balance sheet  with gross on balance Financial Collateral of netting nettingarr-  on balance
2017 pledged potential angements sheet
Repurchase agreements ..........c......... 82 - 82 (82) - - - 82
Derivatives ........ccuveeeeeeiniiiieeeeeeeiiees 1,299 - 1,299 (1,210) - 89 768 2,067
Total liabilities 1,381 - 1,381 (1,292) - 89 768 2,149
2016
Repurchase agreements .................... 1,884 (80) 1,804 (1,884) - (80) - 1,804
DerivatiVes .......coovuvvveeeeieiiieeeeeeeiinees 629 - 629 (629) - - 1,213 1,842
Total liabilities 2,513 (80) 2,433 (2,513) - (80) 1,213 3,646

Reverse repurchase agreements and repurchase agreements are recognized within the line items Financial instruments and Due to

credit institutions and Central Bank respectively.
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25. Investments in associates

The Group's interest in its principal associates 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Audkenni hf., Borgartin 31, Reykjavik, ICEIaNG .........ooouiiiiiiiiii ettt s 25.4% 25.4%
Farice ehf., Smaratorg 3, KOPavoguUr, ICEIANG ........ccvieiieicieee ettt et e et e ea e e e e srne e 35.8% 35.8%
Reiknistofa bankanna hf., Katrinartin 2, Reykjavik, Iceland 23.0% 23.0%
Urridaland ehf., Laugavegur 182, Reykjavik, Iceland ......... - 41.4%
220 Fjordur ehf., Fjardargotu 13-15, Hafnarfjordur, Iceland 35.3% 34.9%
Investments in associates

Carrying amount at the beginning Of TNE YA ......ccueecii et e e ne e 839 27,299
Acquisitions 961 76
[T 1= g Lo Y= 17T SRS (41) (153)
DiSPOSAIS .nteteeteette ettt ettt sttt b e sa e s a bt e b e e b e bt e eh b e e a bt e be et e e heeeate et e e beenheesateshbeenbeebeenteens (74) (27,291)
Share of profit of associates and Net IMPAIMMENT .......ccviiiieieceeeee e re e e e s re e sraeeaeeas (925) 908
INVESTMENT N ASSOCIALES ..uuuiiiiiiiiiiiicccr s s e s s s a s s a s s s a s s e nanans 760 839

In 2017 Arion Bank invested in United Silicon. With the investment United Silicon became associate of the Bank, see Note 28.

In November 2017 Eignarhaldsfélagid Landey ehf. sold its shareholding in the associated company Urridaland ehf. with minor effects on
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Arion Bank holds 38.4% of share capital in Farice ehf., but holds 35.8% of voting rights, based on different classes of share capital of
Farice ehf.
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26. Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise following categories; Goodwill, which arises on business combinations; Infrastructure, Customer
relationships and related agreements which are identified during the acquisition of subsidiaries and related to the activities of the
businesses being acquired; and Software, which is either acquired (i.e. software licenses) or internally developed.

Infrastructure, which is capitalized as an intangible asset, is related to the asset management operation, payment solution and credit
card operation and branding of the insurance operation. The business activity is based on years of building up expertise and systems,
during which a valuable platform has been created for future growth. An impairment test is performed annually as described below.

Customer relationships and related agreements are connected to business relationships and agreements which the Bank acquired in
subsidiaries and agreements bought. The asset is based on the assumption that business relationships and agreements generate
regular payments and earnings to the relevant business segments. The business activities in question are mainly the business
relationship related to individual customers through Retail Banking. The customer relationships is tested for impairment and related
agreements are amortized over a period of five years with one year remaining. When deciding on the lifetime of those agreements it
was based on experience of the Bank and the industry. As a result, those agreements are assessed as having an identified useful
lifetime.

Acquired software and internally developed software is capitalized on the basis of the cost of acquiring them and bringing them into
service. Computer software licenses recognized as intangible assets are amortized over their useful life, which is estimated to be 3-10
years.

In 2017 the Bank's subsidiary Valitor Holding hf. acquired two companies: IPS - International Payment Services Ltd., a UK based
company that specializes in providing a payment terminal (POS) gateway for pan-European retailers, and Chip and Pin Solutions Ltd.,
one of the premier and highly regarded ISOs (Independent Sales Organizations) in the UK, selling POS terminals and acquiring services
to thousands of small and medium size merchants. Valitor Holding hf. acquired controlling interest in both companies. The purpose of
the acquisition is to strengthen Valitor's direct channel in-store market position in the UK as the focus has been on partnerships in that
market until now. The total purchase price of the two companies was ISK 2,123 million and preliminary purchase price allocation
estimated intangible assets in total ISK 2,177 million, which will be assigned to goodwill, customer relationship and related agreements
and software. The allocation of purchase price has not been completed at year end but Valitor Holding hf. will complete it within the 12
months permitted from the acquisition date.

Policies applied to the Group's intangible assets: Goodwill Customer relationship
and infrastructure and related agreements Software
Finite 5-15 years and
USEFUI TIVES .o Undefined n Y Finite 3-10 years

undefined

Straight-line basis over 5-
Amortization Method .........cccovvveiiiiiciiecccee e Impairment test 15 years and
impairment test

Straight-line basis
over 3-10 years

Internally generated

Internally generated or acquired .......cccccocveevcieeeiieeesiee e, Acquired Acquired
Ve q q q and acquired
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26. Intangible assets, continued

Customer

relation-

ship

Infra-  and related
2017 Goodwill  structure agreements  Software Total
Balance at the beginning of the year ........ccccccveeeeeeiciecce e, 2,202 3,705 1,608 3,542 11,057
Acquisition through business combination ..........ccceceevienieneece e, 1,773 - 297 107 2,177
Additions and transfers 174 - (125) 1,310 1,359
Additions, internally developed ..........ccccvvvieiriieniiiiecee e - - - 347 347
Exchange difference ... 166 - 20 41 227
[0 o 1T 4 T=Y o S - - (3) - (3)
Amortization - - (305) (1,011) (1,316)
INtaNGIble @SSEtS ....cuuuvreieriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4,315 3,705 1,492 4,336 13,848

2016

Balance at the beginning of the year ........c.ccccoiniiiiinininee, 2,407 3,021 854 3,003 9,285
Acquisition through business combination .........ccccoeceeeviieeniieenieeecieenens 496 684 904 457 2,541
Additions and transfers ........coueecieiiirieniere e (271) - 110 638 477
Additions, internally developed ..........cccoveeiiiieriiiieceecee e - - - 384 384
EXchange differ@nce ......coceeeieiiieieee e (430) - (32) (182) (644)
[0 11 4 T=Y o S - - (9) - (9)
AMOTTIZATION Loiieicciie ettt s e s rae e s erbe e eearee e aneeeeaseeesanees - - (219) (758) (977)
INtaNGIble @SSEtS ....uuveereieriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirr e 2,202 3,705 1,608 3,542 11,057

Impairment is recognized in the line item Net impairment in the Statement of Comprehensive income.

Goodwill is recognized in the segment Other divisions and subsidiaries, see Note 4.

Impairment testing

The methodology for impairment testing on the Infrastructure and Customer relationship, which is part of intangible assets, is based on
discounted cash flow model which uses inputs that consider features of the business and the environment.

The model used, to determine the recoverable amount, is most sensitive to changes in the forecast earnings available to shareholders
over a five-year period, the cost of equity and to changes in the growth rate. As a result of this analysis impairment of ISK 3 million was

recognized in 2017 (2016: ISK 9 million).

2017 2016
Discount and growth rates Discount Growth  Discount Growth
rates rates rates rates
Asset Management OPEratioN .......cocueeiriieiriiee ettt et e s sre e s sree e sae e e s 15.2% 2.5% 15.1% 2.5%
Payment solution and Credit card 0peration ...........coceeeereerieniieniieneenee e 13.7% 2.5% 15.1% 2-37%
Insurance operation 13-13.9% 2.5% 14.6% 2.5%
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27. Tax assets and tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets and tax liabilities are attributable to the following:

Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities .........ccocevveeriieeiiiniiniieniecicceee,
Investment property and property and equipmMeNt ........cccoceeeriierenenienieneneeeeeen
FINGNCIAL @SSELS ..viiiuviiieiieeciie et ee ettt e et e e e stve e et ee e ebee e beeeeaseeeeabeeesrbaeessaeessaeanns

Other assets and liabilities ..........ccccceeeerieennen.
Deferred tax related to foreign exchange gain ..........ccceceevienininiiniinenicccceceee
TaxX [0SS CAITY FOrWAId ..c..eeceieciiecee ettt s s re e sra e et e e steesneeeneas

Set-off of deferred tax assets together with tax liabilities of the same taxable entities .
Deferred tax assets and tax liabilities .......ccccceeeiieiircnreiiiiiiinieeeeneicccrneren e cneeeeesesenns

2017 2016
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
- 6,329 - 6,630
450 499 288 663
450 6,828 288 7,293
293 - 1 (225)
68 (1,050) 40 (689)
468 - 475 -
124 (383) 266 (407)
- (9) - (103)
440 - 267 -
1,393 (1,442) 1,049 (1,424)
(943) 943 (761) 761
450 (499) 288 (663)

Subsidiaries own tax loss carry forward with asset value of the amount of ISK 493 million (31.12.2016: ISK 464 million) that is not
recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements, due to uncertainty about the utilization possibilities of the loss.

Changes in deferred tax assets and tax liabilities

Addition Recognized Recognized
related through

in profit

2017 At 1Jan. to Vordur equity orloss At 31 Dec.
Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities ..........cccccveeviveeicieennnns (224) - - 517 293
Investment property and property and equipment ........c.ccccceceevveneneeeenne. (649) - - (333) (982)
FINANCIAl @SSEES ..veivvieiieiieciece et st te e ae e ste e eene e 475 - - (7) 468
Other assets and [labilities ........cccceeveeiiiiiiiiiieccee e (141) - - (118) (259)
Deferred foreign exchange differences .......cccoceeeeveevieccieece v (103) - - 94 (9)
Tax 10SS Carry fOrward ......o.vovieeiieiieeniierie et 267 - - 173 440
Change in deferred tax assets and tax liabilities .........cccccceereicrvnnenrrecnnne (375) - - 326 (49)
2016

Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities ..........ccccevvvevieniienenenne (218) - - (6) (224)
Investment property and property and equipment ..........cccecceeveeneercneennen. (170) (409) - (70) (649)
FINANCIAL @SSELS .uveiiieriieiiiecctie et ettt eeetre e e eare e e etbe e e erbeeesabeeenaree s (677) 8 1,171 (27) 475
Other assets and liabilities ........ccceevveeciieiiecie e (239) - - 98 (141)
Deferred foreign exchange differences ........ccccvveereevveniecie e (141) - - 38 (103)
Tax loss carry forward .........cccoeveiveicieeennnn. - 147 - 120 267
Change in deferred tax assets and tax liabilities ..........ccccervriiirrnreniiininnns (1,445) (254) 1,171 153 (375)
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28. Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale 2017 2016
Disposal SrouPs NEIA fOr SAIE ......ccuiii i e e e e et e e e sat e e seabee e s abeeeesbeeessbeeesssaeesnsaeesnseeas 5,219 -
Real estate ......cccceeeevveeeveeenne 2,879 4,371
Other assets 40 47
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale .........ccccciiiiiiiiineiiiiiiinnnnieinere s enssssssens 8,138 4,418

Real estates and other assets classified as non-current assets held for sale are generally the result of foreclosures on companies and
individuals.

United Silicon

At 31 December 2016, the Bank held a loan of ISK 6,277 million against United Silicon, collateralized with shares in the company ans
other asstes. The Bank also had a 6% equity interest in United Silicon and an unsecured bond in the amount of ISK 877 million. In the
second quarter of 2017, Arion Bank invested ISK 907 million in United Silicon, obtaining an interest ownership of 16.3%, with voting
rights of 23.9% and thus United Silicon became an associate of Arion Bank, accounted for according to the equity method, less
impairment. The purpose of the investment was to support the company in operating difficulties. Due to operating difficulties the Bank
fully provisioned for the equity holdings in United Silicon of ISK 1,164 million at the end of the second quarter; ISK 907 million through
Share of profit of associates and ISK 257 million through Net financial income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

In September 2017 the Bank foreclosed on collateral and took possession of the shares in United Silicon and became the largest
shareholder of the company, with an interest ownership of 66.58% and voting rights of 66.68%. With this transaction the Bank acquired
the control of United Silicon and thus the company became a subsidiary of the Bank. The fair value calculation of the underlying assets
resulted in a provision on loans of ISK 2,962 million recognized in Net impairment as well as fair value loss of unsecured bond of ISK 708
million recognized in Net financial income of the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The book value of assets of United Silicon was ISK 5,219 million at year-end 2017. As the company was acquired exclusively with a view
to resale, it has been classified as an asset held for sale and as a discontinued operations as of 31 December 2017 in accordance with
IFRS 5.

The effects on the Statement of Financial Position when United Silicon became subsidiary of the Bank was as follows:

LOGNS £0 CUSTOMEIS ...ttt ettt et et et e e et e s bt e ae et e s besheeae e b e beeb e ea e e eeebeeaeem e e bt eheea b e s e ebeeb e e s s e beebeeaben b e et e ebeenbanteabeeneeneenbesbeeanenne (4,535)
Non-current assets and disposal groups held fOr SAle ..o 4,479
[ D 2T oo 1] ) £ OO PP PP PPTOPPPTOPRTOPN 56
29. Other assets 2017 2016
Property and EQUIPIMENT ...cc..iiiiiiiierieeie ettt sttt st st e st e e be e bt esatesaee et e ssbe e beesatesaseesbeenbaesbsessbeenbeeseensaanseas 6,561 6,723
ACCOUNTS FECERIVADIE .ottt e e e e e rr e e e e e e e taaeeee e e e tbbeeeeeesesssaeeeeeaasssaeeseenansssaeeeeenssaneees 6,531 5,373
UNSettled SECUNTIES trAtING ....coviiiieriiiieeiee sttt ettt e ettt e st e s e sab e e b e e sbe e st e e ssbeesteentaensaesasesasesnseenseesanenns 481 712
Investment for life assurance policyholders where risk is held by policyholder .........cccccevieiieiriieeniieeceeceees 869 820
SUNGAIY @SSEES 1uvveeurietieiteertestteeteesteesteesstessseesseesseesssesssesseesseesseessssssseensesssessssssssesssesnsesnseenssessessseensesssesssesssesssesnss 2,524 2,808
ONEE @SSEES ...ueeiireieneieeiiereeeneeietereerassseeeseesnnsssseeseessnssssssseesenssssssssesensnssssssessesnssssssssessnsnssssssesssnnnssssseesennanssnnns 16,966 16,436
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29. Other assets, continued

Property and equipment

Gross carrying amount at the beginning of the year .........ccccovveviieccee e,
ACGUISTTION L.eviiieiiiiiieeeee ettt e s et e e e s st b et e e e s sabb bt e e eeesnnbeeeesseannnneeeessans
Acquisition through business combination ...........cccccuveeiiieeiiie e
DiSP0SalS @aNd TrANSTEIS ..oveieuiieiiciieiierie sttt et e st e e st esnaeenae e
Translation diffErE&NCE .....ooouiiviiiii et s
Gross carrying amount at the end of the year ..........coieviciieeeiiiiiiiineencnencccneresenecene
Accumulated depreciation at the beginning of the year ........ccccceeevvieevieieciece e,
DEPreciation ..ot e
DiSP0Sals @aNd TraNSTEIS ...ueicueeieieiecee ettt et eeae e
Accumulated depreciation at the end of the year ..........cccooeivieiiniiiiiicniiieeiiineees
Property and equipment .........ccccceieiiiiinininininnsnsnn,

Real Equip- Total Total
estate ment 2017 2016
6,114 7,587 13,701 12,903

- 776 776 1,010

- 21 21 62
(135) (298) (433) (259)

- 5 5 (15)
5,979 8,091 14,070 13,701
(1,728)  (5,250)  (6,978) (6,137)
(143) (673) (816) (865)
31 254 285 24
(1,840) (5,669) (7,509) (6,978)
4,139 2,422 6,561 6,723

The official real estate value (Registers Iceland) amounted to ISK 5,677 million at the end of the year (31.12.2016: ISK 4,905 million) and

the insurance value amounts to ISK 10,066 million (31.12.2016: ISK 8,818 million).

30. Other liabilities 2017 2016
JAYelolo TU ] £ o T 1 V7 o) L RS PRRP 26,394 22,627
Unsettled SECUTItIES tratiNG ......cocuiriiriiiiieteeee ettt ettt sttt sbe et e sbe bt st 527 668
Depositors' and INvestors' GUArantee FUNG™ ...........cciviiiiciiiiieiee et te e e e e sare e e e saeesreesneeeneas 218 2,870
TECNNICAI PrOVISION ..vviiniieiieeieee ettt sttt ettt st e et e e bt e saeesabeesbe e beesbbesabesabeenbeaseesasesnseenseensaesasesasean 12,129 10,243
Technical provision for life assurance policyholders were investment risk is held by policyholder ....................... 869 820
WWIENNOIAING TAX 11ttt ettt st sttt s bt e st b e s it e et e e bt e bt e s aaesabeenbeesseesabesabeenbeesbeesssesnbeenseensaanseas 1,414 1,745
12 L0 Q11T SR 3,172 2,872
Sundry liabilities ... 12,339 12,249
(074 1= gl [F=1 <Y1 L1 A =X OSSO SO UTUTSPPPPRN 57,062 54,094
Technical provision Technical Reinsurers' Total Technical Reinsurers' Total

provision share 2017 provision share 2016
Claims reported and loss adjustment expenses ...........ccceeueene. 5,587 (121) 5,466 4,842 (167) 4,675
Claims incurred but not reported 1,664 (99) 1,565 1,352 (99) 1,253
Claims outstanding .......cccceeeeercccrneeerericcssnneeeeeescsssneeeesssesnnnns 7,251 (220) 7,031 6,194 (266) 5,928
Provision for unearned premiums ........c.cccceevveevvesieeeieesieenenens 4,878 (19) 4,859 4,049 (18) 4,031
Own technical Provision .........ccccceeevveeeiiiinisnnneneeenninnenneesnns 12,129 (239) 11,890 10,243 (284) 9,959

Insurance claim consists of claims outstanding and provision for unearned premiums. Claims outstanding present unsettled claims
incurred. Claims outstanding is the total of claims reported and actuarial estimation of claims incurred but not reported. Provision for
unearned premiums presents the current insurance risk that will be conditional on future fiscal years.

*In prior years the Bank had recognized a liability of ISK 2,669 million against the Depositors' and Investors' Guarantee Fund. At the end of June 2017 the Bank

received confirmation from the Fund stating that the claim would not be collected, see Note 35.
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31. Borrowings

Terms of interest

Fixed, CPI linked, 2.50% ..................
Fixed, 5.50% ....coveevveeeirreeereeeennennn
Fixed, CPI linked, 3.50% ..................
Fixed, 6.50% ....ccveevveeeereeeereeennennn
Fixed, CPI linked, 3.00% ..................
Fixed, CPI linked, 3.50% .... .
Fixed, CPI linked, 3.60% ..................

Fixed, CPI linked, 3.75% .......cccuu......
Fixed, CPI linked, 4.00% ..................
Fixed, CPI linked, 3.75% .......cccu......

LY TTo T =Yoo lVZ=T =Yoo To T 4V L3RRS

First
Currency, original nominal value issued
ARION CBI 19, ISK 4,500 million ........ 2013
ARION CB 19, ISK 2,740 million ......... 2016
ARION CBI 21, ISK 10,220 million ...... 2014
ARION CB 22, ISK 23,660 million ....... 2015
ARION CBI 25, ISK 23,080 million ...... 2017
ARION CBI 29, ISK 25,220 million ...... 2014
ARION CBI 34, ISK 2,500 million ........ 2012
Statutory covered bonds .........cccoeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnn.
ARION CB 1, ISK 21,877 million ......... 2006
ARION CB 4, ISK 15,500 million ......... 2008
ARION CB 2, ISK 51,125 million ......... 2006
Total Covered bonds .........ccceeeiiiiiiineeeriiiiiiineneeincniieeeeensscnnene
USD 30 million ... 2016
EUR 21 million ..ccceevveevienienieeieeene 2009
ISK 3,835 million ..c..covveeiiiieiiiiiene 2010
EUR 300 million 2015
SEK 500 million 2016
EUR 300 million 2016
RON 35 million ..ccccoevveevieeiieienienen. 2016
SEK 275 million .....ceevveveeeevieecieeenee, 2016
SEK 100 million .. 2017
NOK 800 mMillion ....c.eevveevvenvenienieane 2015
NOK 320 million ....ceeeeveervenienieeiene 2016
EUR 300 million* ......ccoceevievreniieninne 2017
SEK 300 million .....coveeieenienienieeeeene 2017
SEK 250 million .....cocveevveenienienieeieene 2017
EUR 500 million* .....cccocoenenieienienene 2016
USD 747 million ...ccocvvveeenieeiiieecieeene 2016
NOK 250 million ....c.ceeveeveenienienieene 2017
NOK 250 million ....ceeveevvenieniennienne 2017
Senior unsecured bonds ..........ccceeeiiiiiiiieeeiiininn e

Maturity
Maturity type
2019 At maturity
2019 At maturity
2021 At maturity
2022 At maturity
2025 At maturity
2029 At maturity
2034  Amortizing
2033 Amortizing
2045  Amortizing
2048 Amortizing
2017 At maturity
2018  Amortizing
2018 Amortizing
2018 At maturity
2018 At maturity
2019 At maturity
2019 At maturity
2019 At maturity
2019 At maturity
2020 At maturity
2020 At maturity
2020 At maturity
2020 At maturity
2020 At maturity
2021 At maturity
2023 At maturity
2023 At maturity
2027 At maturity

Floating, 3 month LIBOR +1.93% ....
Floating, EURIBOR +1.00% .............
Floating, REIBOR +1.00% ................
Fixed, 3.125% .ccceevveenrenienieeieennenn
Floating, 3 month STIBOR +1.09% ..
Fixed, 2.50% ...ccoveevevererenienieeieennenn
Fixed, 3.80% ....ccceeeeeeneenieninieienen
Floating, 3 month STIBOR +2.65% ..
Fixed, 0.29% ....ccceveeeeneenienenieiene
Floating, NIBOR +2.95%
Floating, NIBOR +1.95% ........cc.......
Fixed, 0.75% ..ccccervevrvrerirenreenieeninns
Floating, 3 month STIBOR +1.35% ..
Floating, 3 month STIBOR +0.75% ..
Fixed, 1.625% ..cceeveevenierenierieneenne
Floating, 3 month LIBOR +2.60% ....
Fixed, 3.02% ...ccoevervieniirenieeniee
Fixed, 3.40% ..ccccorveerverirerreeniieninns

2017 2016
4,586 4,502
1,789 580
9,729 9,696

23,339 19,596
22,875 -
26,243 23,524
2,152 2,207
90,713 60,105
- 16,734

- 6,199
78,267 78,239
78,267 101,172
168,980 161,277
- 3,406

348 662
531 1,063
25461 36,610
6,348 3,113
37,957 36,307
966 951
3,485 3,422
1,268 .
10236 10,617
4,087 2,902
37,356 -
3,811 .
3,173 -
61,341 35,639
- 29317
3,231 .
3,240 -
202,839 164,009
10,794 13,854
2,385 336
13,179 14,190
384,998 339,476

*The Group applies fair value hedge accounting to these bond issuances and uses certain foreign currency denominated interest rate swaps as hedging instruments,
see Note 23. The interest rate swaps are hedging the exposure of the Group's changes in the fair value of these fixed-rate foreign currency denominated bonds arising
from changes in interest rates. The Group started to apply hedge accounting at the beginning of 2017. The total carrying amount of the bond issuances is ISK 98,697
million and included in the amount are fair value changes amounting to ISK 736 million, see Note 8.

The book value of listed bonds was ISK 371 billion at the end of the year (31.12.2016: ISK 284 billion). The market value of those bonds
was ISK 388 billion (31.12.2016: ISK 290 billion). The Group repurchased own debts in 2017 in the amount of ISK 20 billion (2016: nil)
with minor effects on the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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31.

32.

33.

Borrowings, continued

In January 2016 the Bank reached an agreement with Kaupthing under which FX deposits held at Arion Bank would be converted into
issued EMTN bond in USD and Kaupthing would prepay Arion Bank's Central Bank secured loan, in various currencies, of ISK 56 billion.
The total issue was ISK 97 billion (USD 747 million) with mandatory prepayment requirement if the Bank should issue bonds in excess of
USD 165 million. In 2016 Arion Bank's issue exceeded this benchmark twice and thus a prepayment of ISK 57 billion (USD 489 million)
was made in 2016. The remaining outstanding amount of I1SK 29 billion (USD 258 million) was prepaid in June 2017.

Pledged assets

Pledged assets against liabilities 2017 2016
Assets, pledged as collateral against DOrTOWINES ........ccueviiiiiiiiiiiniiiieecr e 202,381 196,901
Assets, pledged as collateral against loans from credit institutions and short positions ...........ccccceeveveenceeecvennnen. 13,364 15,644
Pledged assets against liabilities .........cccceeiriineiiiiiiiiiinnniiiinier s 215,745 212,545

The Group has pledged assets against borrowings, both issued covered bonds and other issued bonds and loan agreements. The total
value of those pledged assets was ISK 202 billion at the end of the year (31.12.2016: ISK 197 billion). Pledged loans comprised mortgage
loans to individuals. The book value of those borrowings was ISK 169 billion at the end of the year (31.12.2016: ISK 161 billion).

The Group has pledged bonds against short term lending from the Central Bank of Iceland and against short positions, related to swap
agreements, to hedge market risk of those assets.

Equity

Share capital and share premium

According to the Bank's Articles of Association, total share capital amounts to ISK 2,000 million, with par value of ISK 1 per share. The
holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as approved by the general meeting and are entitled to one vote per share
at Shareholders' meetings.

Number Number
(million) 2017 (million) 2016
ISSUEA SHAre CaPItal ..ueeveieeieeiieiece ettt et ae e ens 2,000 75,861 2,000 75,861

Share premium represents excess of payment above nominal value that shareholders have paid for shares issued by Arion Bank hf.

Other reserves 2017 2016
STATULOIY FESEIVE ettt e e e s bbbt e s e e bbbt e e e s e e bbbt e e e s esbbb e e e e s ssabbbbeeeeessnsbbaeeseaaanns 1,637 1,637
Reserve for investments iN SUDSIAIAIIES  ....ccuvviiii ittt e et e e e e e e stbre e e e e e e satraeeeeeeabaeeeeeeeesbneeeeeeanes 14,011 17,012
Reserve for iNVeStMENTS iN @SSOCIALES .....c..evtiriiriiiirierie ettt sttt ettt sttt sb e st sbesbe i s 39 23
Reserve for iNVestMENtS iN SECUITIES ......cciuiiiiiiiiiieeie ettt ettt st e st e st e s b e beesbeesseeenreenne 901 899
Foreign currency translation reserve 186 190
OTher FESEIVES ...ceivcueriiinieiineerinneessee e ssssessssseesenee 16,774 19,761

In June 2016 the Icelandic parliament approved amendments to the Financial Statements Act including new requirements on equity
reserves in relation to unrealized profit from financial assets. The amendments may affect future dividend payments to the
shareholders of Arion Bank, see Note 66.
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Other information
34. Legal matters

The Group has formal controls and policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of
loss reasonably estimated, the Group makes adjustments, if appropriate, to account for any adverse effects which the claims may have
on its financial standing. When the Group is of the opinion that it is to the detriment of the Group's case to disclose potential amounts
relating to legal claims, it elects not to do so. At the end of the year, the Group had several unresolved legal claims.

Contingent liabilities
Legal proceedings regarding damages

With a writ issued in June 2013, Kortathjonustan hf. claimed damages from Arion Bank hf., islandsbanki hf., Landsbankinn hf., Borgun
hf. and the Bank's subsidiary Valitor hf. in the amount of ISK 1.2 billion plus interest, as a result of damage Kortathjonustan hf.
contended the five parties caused the company due to violations of the Competition Act. In June the Supreme Court dismissed the case
on procedural grounds. Kortathjéonustan hf. issued a new writ in September 2017 regarding the same matter of dispute this time
claiming damages in the amount of ISK 922 million plus interest from the same defendants. The defendants have brought forth a
motion to dismiss. If the defendants would be ordered to pay damages they would be jointly responsible for the payment of damages.
Therefore the Bank has not made any provision.

The former chairman of the Board of BM Valla hf., together with Lindarflt ehf., have filed two cases against the Bank claiming
damages in the amount of more than ISK 4 billion plus interest. The plaintiffs claim that the Bank caused them, as shareholders of BM
Valla hf. and Fasteignafélagid Artin ehf., damage by not allowing the companies to be financially restructured and thereby forcing the
companies into bankruptcy. The Bank believes that it will be acquitted of the plaintiffs' claims in both cases and has therefore not made
any provision.

In January 2015, Datacell ehf. and Sunshine Press Productions ehf. jointly filed a suit against Valitor hf. for compensatory damages
amounting to approximately ISK 8.1 billion relating to Valitor hf.'s termination of Datacell's vendor agreement. The Icelandic Supreme
Court ruled on 24 April 2013 in case no. 612/2012 that Valitor hf. did not have the authority to terminate the agreement. The plaintiffs
had court-appointed appraisers evaluate the plaintiffs' alleged losses and they returned their report in March 2016. Valitor hf.
disagreed with the assessment stated in the report and filed a motion to appoint three court appraisers to re-evaluate the plaintiffs'
alleged losses. The district court agreed to Valitor hf.'s demand. The reassessment has been completed but it was not filed with the
court. Valitor hf. has requested a new assessment, which will examine particular aspects which have not yet been assessed. The district
court has not ruled on this motion.

When Arion Bank acquired a 39.21% shareholding in Valitor Holding hf. in 2014-2015, the Bank signed agreements with the sellers
(Landsbankinn and two savings banks) concerning losses which Valitor may potentially sustain in relation to the compensatory damages
described above. Thus the Group may lodge a claim against the sellers for their share in the potential loss should Valitor lose the case.
The Group has not made any provision in this case.

Other legal matters
Mortgage documents

Courts cases are being prosecuted against the Bank in which it is demanded that the mortgaging of part of a property be invalidated on
the basis that the signature of the mortgagor on the mortgage documents was not correct. In 2017 the Supreme Court, in respect of
cases which did not involve the Bank, ruled in several cases regarding this issue. In the majority of those cases the Supreme Court
invalidated a mortgage. The district court has ruled in several court cases involving the Bank regarding the aforementioned dispute. In
the majority of those cases the district court invalidated a mortgage. The Bank is awaiting further rulings from the Supreme Court to
assess the possible impact of a negative outcome on the Bank's loan portfolio.

United Silicon

The company United Silicon was granted a moratorium on payments on 14 August 2017 and filed for bankruptcy on 22 January 2018.
The Bank has collateral in the company's assets. During the moratorium period three unsecured creditors of the company sent the Bank
a letter in which they asked for the cooperation of creditors in order to solve issues related to the company but they also submitted
observations on the Bank's lien on the assets of United Silicon and reserved the right to lodge claims against the Bank if these liens are
invalid. The Bank has examined these criticisms and rejects them all.
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35. Commitments

2017 2016
Financial guarantees, unused overdraft and loan commitments the Group has granted its customers
FINQNCIAl BUAIANTEES .eeiuvvieeiiie ettt tte e tte e ettt e et e sttt e e aaeeeeabeeesabeeeassaeeansaeaassseaansseesasseessseeeasseaessseeesstseeanseeaans 13,224 15,270
UNUSEA OVEIATATES .oviiiiviiiiiie ettt ettt eete e eette e e et e e e etbeeeetbaeeeabaeeeabaeeessaeeesseeeeabeeesabseesesaeesnsaseasseeesseeeanseeensreenn 45,897 46,379
[ o T 1ol 0T 41 0 =T 0 RS 87,942 82,268

Depositors' and Investors' Guarantee Fund

The Icelandic parliament has discussed a bill on a new Depositors' and Investors' Guarantee Fund, without reaching a conclusion on the
matter. Even though the law has not been amended Icelandic banks have made quarterly payments to a separate division within the
fund since 2010. The calculated liability from 2010 which is according to the old act, was ISK 2,669 million. At the end of June 2017 the
Bank received confirmation from the Depositors' and Investors' Guarantee Fund that this liability would not be collected by the fund.
Therefore the Bank reversed a previously expensed contribution to the Depositors' and Investors' Guarantee Fund amounting to I1SK
2,669 million, in 2017.

36. Operating lease commitments

Group as a lessee
The Group has concluded lease agreements on some of the real estate it uses for its operations. These lease agreements are for a
period of up to 10 years. The majority of the contracts include renewal options for various periods of time.

2017 2016
Less than one year . 547 507
OVEr 1 YEAr AN UP £0 5 YEAIS ceiuviieiiiieeitieeeitieeestee e tee e steeesateesae e e sbaeesbaeeesbeeessteeeanteeeanseeesnseeessseeesnseeessseesnsseeans 1,481 1,371
VB 5 YBANS eeeiueeteeiieee ettt e ettt e ettt ettt e ettt e sttt e s eae e e s s abe e s e abeeesab e e e sabeeeeaseeeeasbeesanb e e s abeeseaaeeeeabeeesabeeesabbeeeabbeeenteeennneeeaas 341 368
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 1eases ..........cccecrerrreriririiniiiiicisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnns 2,369 2,246

Group as a lessor
The Group has entered lease agreements on its investment properties and real estates. The lease agreements are for a period of up to

9 years.

2017 2016
LESS TNAN ONE YA ..ttiieiieeeciiee et ee ettt e sttt e et e e st e e s ataeeeateeeaaaeeeeaseeesasaeesasaeeasseeensbeeeaneeeenteeennsaeennseeenneeennees 69 68
OVEr 1 YEAr AN UP TO 5 YEAIS weeeuvieriiiriiieiiesitenitesiteeteesteesteesiteste e bt esbeesttessbessbeesbee st enstessseenseeseenssesasesnseenbeesseesssens 233 147
Over 5 years 103 55
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 1€ases ........cccccvvririrnneiiiiiiiinnnnnniiinninnneeeeienseesenens 405 270

37. Assets under management and under custody

ASSETS UNAEI MANAZEIMENT ..eeiieiireieiiieieeitie sttt eiteesteesteeseesteesteesseesseesssesseesseesssessseessessseesssessseessesnsessseesssesssessseesses 984,653 1,054,759
P Y=l AU Vo L= o ol U T o Lo 1Y SRR 1,620,355 1,532,860

Assets under management represent the total market value of the financial assets which the Group manages on behalf of its
customers.

The Group, acting as custodian, is responsible for safeguarding a firm's or individual's financial assets, hold in safekeeping securities
such as stocks, bonds and securities funds, arrange the settlement of trades and movements of securities, process corporate actions
such as income on bonds and dividends on shares; and pricing on securities.
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38. Events after the reporting period

At a shareholders' meeting on 12 February 2018 the Board of Directors of Arion Bank was given a mandate and the authorization to
acquire up to 10% of issued shares in the Bank, in one or more transactions. This authorization is valid until 15 April 2018.

At the same shareholders' meeting approval was given for a conditional dividend payment of up to ISK 25 billion, which is contingent on
Kaupskil, which owns 57.41% of the issued share capital in the Bank, having previously sold no less than 2% in Arion Bank in a private
placement. This conditional authorization is valid until 15 April 2018.

At the shareholders' meeting it was also approved that the aforementioned acquisition of shares and dividend would be a maximum of
ISK 25 billion.

On 14 February 2018 an announcement was made on the sale by Kaupskil of 5.34% of outstanding shares in Arion Bank to a number of
funds managed by four Icelandic fund management companies, who come on board as new investors, and Trinity Investments (Attestor
Capital LLP) and Goldman Sachs, who are increasing their stakes in the Bank. The conditions for the aforementioned dividend payment
is therefore fulfilled.
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Related party

39. Related party

The Group has a related party relationship with Kaupskil ehf., which is the ultimate controlling party with a 57.41% stake in Arion Bank,
the Board of Directors of Kaupskil ehf. and Kaupthing hf., which is the parent company of Kaupskil ehf. Taconic Capital Advisors UK LLP
through TCA New Sidecar Il S.A.R.L. holds 9.99% shareholding in Arion Bank and Sculptor Investments S.A.R.L., an affiliated entity of
Och-Ziff Capital Management Group manages 6.58% shareholding in Arion Bank, but the shareholding is managed by Kaupskil ehf.
Taconic Capital Advisors UK LLP, TCA New Sidecar Il S.A.R.L., Sculptor Investments S.A.R.L. and Och-Ziff Capital Management Group are
thus defined as related party with control over the Group.

Attestor Capital LLP through Trinity Investment Designated Activity Company manages 10.44% shareholding in Arion Bank and
Goldman Sachs International through ELQ Investors Il Ltd. manages 2.57% shareholding in Arion Bank. Icelandic State Financial
Investments (ISFI, a separate state institution under the Ministry of Finance) manages a 13.00% shareholding in Arion Bank. All above-
mentioned parties are defined as related party with influence over the Group.

islandsbanki hf. and Landsbankinn hf. are wholly owned by ISFI. The Group applies the partial exemption for government-related
entities as described in |IAS 24, paragraphs 25-27.

The Board of Directors of Arion Bank and key Management personnel of the Bank are defined as related parties, as well as close family
members of individuals referred to above and legal entities controlled by them. The Group's associates are also defined as related
parties.

Transactions with related parties have been conducted on an arm's length basis. There have been no further guarantees provided or
received for related party receivables or payables.

2017 Net
Balances with related parties Assets  Liabilities balance
Shareholders with cONtrol OVEr the GrOUP .......eeivieriiiriiinie ettt sttt et e saeesaae e 57 (4,785) (4,728)
Shareholders with influence oVer the GroUD .........cceeiiiiiieieeceec e s e 423 (151) 272
Board of Directors and key Management personnel .. 183 (101) 82
Associates and other related PArties .......vecvecueeieereere et rre et e e s e s e e e e teeneesaneenns - (83) (83)
Balances with related Parties ........cccceiiiiiiinnniiiiiiiinnieniiinsre e ssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnnns 663 (5,120) (4,457)

Interest Interest Other Other
Transactions with related parties income  expense income expense
Shareholders with control Over the Group .......ccccevierieireenieniereete e - (480) - -
Shareholders with influence over the Group ........ccccveveevierie e 81 - 7 -
Board of Directors and key Management personnel ........cccccoeveeveniinenienicnenenecnnennens 13 (5) 10 (184)
Associates and other related parties . - (3) - (1,260)
Transactions with related Parties ........cccccvveiiinnneniinniinnneneiniinenenisesessmsee. 94 (488) 17 (1,444)
2016 Net
Balances with related parties Assets Liabilities balance
Shareholders with control over the GroUP ........c..coiiiiiiiiiiiitce e 192 (7,255) (7,063)
Board of Directors and key Management personnel ..........ccceeveerieriienieeneenie s 255 (242) 13
Associates and other related PArties .....o.vivvevcueeiierieriere et s e saesaeesteenseesaaeeaee 181 (369) (188)

Balances with related parties 628 (7,866) (7,238)

Interest Interest Other Other
Transactions with related parties income expense income expense
Shareholders with control over the GroUp ........cceecieeieeieeceecee e 1 (89) 4 -
Board of Directors and key Management personnel .. 15 (7) - -
Associates and other related PArties .....ccccceeceeeeerieeieece et reeaeas 28 (4) 2 (216)
Transactions with related Parties ........ccccceviiiiineeniiiiiiinnnneiniisenenessesssmseee 44 (100) 6 (216)

At the end of 2016 Kaupthing hf. held senior unsecured bonds, issued by Arion Bank in January 2016, for the amount of ISK 29,317
million. The amount is not included in the table above. The bond was paid up in 2017.
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Risk management disclosures

The Group faces various risks arising from its day to day operations. Managing risk is therefore a core activity within the Group. The
key to effective risk management is a process of on-going identification of significant risk, quantification of risk exposure, actions to
limit risk and constant monitoring of risk. This process of risk management and the ability to evaluate, manage and correctly price the
risk encountered is critical to the Group's continuing profitability as well as to be able to ensure that the Group's exposure to risk
remains within acceptable levels.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the Group's risk management framework and ensuring that satisfactory risk policies
and governance for controlling the Group's risk exposure are in place. The Board allocates risk management of subsidiaries to the
relevant subsidiary. For the parent company (the Bank) the Board sets risk appetite, which is translated into exposure limits and targets
monitored by the Bank's Risk Management division.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is responsible for sustaining an effective risk management framework, processes and control as well
as maintaining a high level of risk awareness among the employees, making risk everyone's business.

The Bank operates several committees to manage risk. The Board Risk Committee (BRIC) is responsible for supervising the Bank's risk
management framework, risk appetite and the internal capital and liquidity adequacy assessment processes (ICAAP/ILAAP). The Asset
and Liability Committee (ALCO), is responsible for managing the asset-liability mismatch, liquidity risk, market risk, and interest rate risk
and capital management. The Underwriting and Investment Committee (UIC) decides on underwriting and principal investments. The
Data Committee (DC) is responsible for ensuring that data is managed properly; and the Security Committee (SC) is responsible for
security matters, both information security and physical security. The Bank operates four credit committees: The Board Credit
Committee (BCC) which decides on all major credit risk exposures, the Arion Credit Committee (ACC) which operates within limits
specified as a fraction of the Bank's own funds, and the Corporate Credit Committee (CCC) and Retail Branch Committees (RBC) which
operate within tighter credit granting limits.

The Bank's Internal Audit conducts independent reviews of the Bank's and several subsidiaries' operations, risk management
framework, processes and measurements. Internal Audit discusses its results with management and reports its findings and
recommendations to the BAC.

The Bank's Risk Management division is headed by the Chief Risk Officer. It is independent and centralized and reports directly to the
CEO. The division is divided into three units: Credit Control, which monitors credit exposures on a customer-by-customer basis; Balance
Sheet Risk, which oversees all risks related to asset and liability mismatch, including capital and is responsible for the Bank's ICAAP and
ILAAP; and Operational Risk which monitors risks associated with the daily operation of the Bank. The Bank's Data Officer is part of the
Risk Management division.

The most significant risks the Group is exposed to are credit risk, including concentration risk, liquidity risk, indexation risk and interest
rate risk. These risk factors are to the largest extent encountered within the Bank. Subsidiaries bear risk arising from real estate market
and private equity prices and from asset management and insurance activities.

The Bank has no large exposure at the end of the year. The total sum of large exposures is therefore 0% as in the previous year. A large
exposure is defined as an exposure to a group of financially related borrowers which is equal to or exceeds 10% of the Group's eligible
capital.

The Group's operations are subject to interest rate risk associated with mismatches in the fixing of interest rates between assets and
liabilities. Prepayment risk has increased due to favorable refinancing spreads in the domestic market where interest rates have
decreased. The Group is exposed to indexation risk as index-linked assets exceed index-linked liabilities.

Liquidity risk is a large risk factor in the Group's operation due to maturity mismatch between assets and liabilities. The maturity of
loans exceeds the maturity of deposits, of which 77% is on-demand or with less than 30 day term.

Further information on risk management and capital adequacy is provided in the annual Financial Statements for 2017 and in the Pillar
3 Risk Disclosures for 2017. The Pillar 3 Risk Disclosures 2017 will be published in March 2018 and be available on the Bank's website,
www.arionbanki.is. The Pillar 3 Risk Disclosures are not subject to external audit.
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40. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual
obligations.

Credit risk arises anytime the Group commits its funds, resulting in capital or earnings being dependent on counterparty, issuer or
borrower performance. Loans to customers and credit institutions are the largest source of credit risk. Credit risk is also inherent in
other types of assets, such as bonds and debt instruments, and off balance sheet items such as commitments and guarantees.

Managing and analyzing the Group's loan portfolio is of utmost importance. Great emphasis is placed on the quality of the credit
portfolio, by maintaining a strict credit process, critically inspecting loan applications, actively monitoring the credit portfolio and
identifying and reacting to possible problem loans at an early stage as well as restructuring of impaired credits.

The Group grants credit based on well informed lending decisions and seeks business with strong parties with strong collaterals and
good repayment capacity. The risk level of each credit is considered in the pricing.

Credit risk is managed and controlled by setting limits on the amount of risk the Group is willing to accept for individual counterparties
and group of connected clients, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. The Group seeks to limit its total credit risk
through diversification of the loan portfolio across sectors and by limiting large exposures to group of connected clients.
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40. Credit risk, continued

Exposure to credit risk

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Statement of Financial Position, by industry classification at the end of the year before the effect of mitigation due
to collateral agreements or other credit enhancements. The Group uses an internal industry classification which is based on the ISAT0O8 standard classification. ISATO8 is based on the NACE Rev. 2

classification standard.

2017

Maximum exposure to credit risk related to on-balance sheet assets

Real estate Information Financial Industry,

activities and com-  Wholesale and energy and Agriculture

and Fishing munication andretail  insurance manu-  Transpor- Public and
Individuals construction industry  technology trade activities facturing tation Services sector forestry Total
Cash and balances with Central Bank ....... - - - - - 139,819 - - - - - 139,819
Loans to credit institutions ........cccccuveeeeen. - - - - - 86,609 - - - - - 86,609
Loans to CUSLOMErS ....ccceeeeververeeeieeeneens 365,287 128,153 78,937 22,020 57,432 34,138 29,452 17,111 18,157 7,824 6,590 765,101
Financial instruments ........ccoceveeeevinveeennn. 295 1,118 252 - 25 22,889 9,110 3 2,162 42,930 - 78,784
Other assets with credit risk ..................... 2,380 324 93 24 43 5,542 118 213 156 54 1 8,948

Total on-balance sheet maximum

exposure to credit risk ......cccccceevieeennne 367,962 129,595 79,282 22,044 57,500 288,997 38,680 17,327 20,475 50,808 6,591 1,079,261

Maximum exposure to credit risk related to off-balance sheet items

Financial guarantees ........cccocveevevveevinveenne 1,443 1,482 287 334 3,819 120 748 1,671 3,247 47 26 13,224
Unused overdrafts ........cocveveeevenieenennns 28,898 2,462 640 546 4,511 1,058 2,200 380 2,330 2,453 419 45,897
Loan commitments ........ccccveeerinniieeeeennn. 5,297 25,148 8,023 1,850 18,035 5,448 17,689 2,575 3,541 - 336 87,942
Total off-balance sheet maximum

exposure to credit risk .........cccceeeerennnns 35,638 29,092 8,950 2,730 26,365 6,626 20,637 4,626 9,118 2,500 781 147,063
Maximum exposure to credit risk ........... 403,600 158,687 88,232 24,774 83,865 295,623 59,317 21,953 29,593 53,308 7,372 1,226,324
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40. Credit risk, continued

2016

Maximum exposure to credit risk related to on-balance sheet assets

Real estate Information Financial Industry,
activities and com-  Wholesale and energy and Agriculture
and Fishing munication and retail insurance manu-  Transpor- Public and
Individuals construction industry technology trade activities facturing tation Services sector forestry Total
Cash and balances with Central Bank ........ - - - - - 87,634 - - - - - 87,634
Loans to credit institutions ........c..cccceeneen. - - - - - 80,116 - - - - - 80,116
Loans to CUSLOMErS .....cccevveeverierieniieienienne 337,417 114,895 76,475 28,647 52,719 34,939 28,633 6,519 17,308 8,711 6,159 712,422
Financial instruments 307 1,106 261 - 7 18,865 10,942 3 557 59,253 - 91,301
Other assets with credit risk .............c......